SCM MICROSYSTEMS INC Form S-4 February 02, 2009

## As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 30, 2009

Registration No. 333-

# UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

# Form S-4 REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 SCM MICROSYSTEMS, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 3577 77-0444317

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

(Primary Standard Industrial Classification Code Number)

(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

# Oskar-Messter-Str. 13, 85737 Ismaning, Germany + 49 89 95 95 5000

(Address, Including Zip Code, and Telephone Number, Including Area Code, of Registrant s Principal Executive Offices)

#### David Holmes 41740 Christy Street Fremont, California 94538 (510) 360-2300

(Name, Address, Including Zip Code, and Telephone Number, Including Area Code, of Agent for Service)

#### Copies to:

Michael L. Reed Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher LLP 555 Mission Street, Suite 3000 San Francisco, California 94105 Facsimile: (415) 374-8459 Alan H. Wiener, Esq.
Melisa R. Perez, Esq.
Palmieri, Tyler, Wiener, Wilhelm &
Waldron LLP
2603 Main Street, Suite 1300
Irvine, California 92614
Facsimile: (949) 851-1554

**Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale to the public:** As soon as practicable after the effective date of this Registration Statement and the satisfaction or waiver of all other conditions to the merger described in the joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

If the securities being registered on this Form are to be offered in connection with the formation of a holding company and there is compliance with General Instruction G, check the following box. o

If this form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. o

If this form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(d) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer o

Accelerated filer o Non-accelerated filer o

Smaller reporting company b

(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

#### CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

			Proposed Aaximum		Proposed Maximum		
	Amount to						
Title of Each Class of	be		Offering Aggregate Price per Offering		Amount of Registration		
<b>Securities to be Registered(1)</b>	Registered(2)	Share		Price(3)		Fee	
Common Stock, \$0.001 par value per							
share	9,561,470		[N/A]	\$	23,999,290	\$	943.17
Warrants to Purchase Common Stock	4,950,511	\$	3.00	\$	14,851,533	\$	583.67

- (1) This registration statement relates to common stock, \$0.001 par value per share, and warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock of SCM Microsystems, Inc., a Delaware corporation (SCM), issuable to holders of shares of Hirsch Electronics Corporation, a California corporation (Hirsch), in connection with the proposed acquisition of Hirsch by SCM through a two-step merger.
- (2) The amount of SCM common stock and warrants to be registered has been determined based on the estimated maximum number of shares and warrants to be issued in the merger, calculated based upon the exchange of 4,830,735 shares (based on the number of issued and outstanding shares of Hirsch common stock, warrants and options exercisable to purchase shares of Hirsch common stock as of January 23, 2009).
- (3) Estimated solely for purposes of calculation of the registration fee in accordance with Rule 457(f) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, based upon the average of the high and low price per share of SCM common stock as reported on the NASDAQ Stock Market on January 28, 2009.

The Registrant hereby amends this Registration Statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the Registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this Registration Statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 or until the Registration Statement shall become effective on such date as the Securities and Exchange Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine.

The information in the proxy statement/prospectus/information statement is not complete and may be changed. We may not sell these securities until the registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. The proxy statement/prospectus/information statement is not an offer to sell these securities and is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any state where the offer or sale is not permitted.

#### JOINT PROXY STATEMENT/INFORMATION STATEMENT AND PROSPECTUS

#### SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED JANUARY 30, 2009

#### PROPOSED MERGER

To the Stockholders of SCM Microsystems, Inc. and Shareholders of Hirsch Electronics Corporation:

The boards of directors of each of SCM Microsystems, Inc. (SCM) and Hirsch Electronics Corporation (Hirsch) have approved a merger transaction in which the businesses of SCM and Hirsch will be combined. We are sending the accompanying joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus to you to ask you to vote in favor of this merger and the related transactions.

SCM is holding a special meeting of its stockholders in order to obtain the stockholder approval necessary to complete the merger with Hirsch and certain related matters. At the SCM special meeting, which will be held at [ ] a.m., local time, on [ ], 2009, at SCM s U.S. office located at 41740 Christy Street, Fremont, California 94538, unless postponed or adjourned to a later date, SCM will ask its stockholders to approve, among other items, the issuance of shares of SCM common stock and warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock to the securityholders of Hirsch in connection with the merger, as described in the accompanying joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

After careful consideration, SCM s board of directors has approved the merger and the related issuance of up to 9,561,470 shares of SCM common stock, par value \$0.001, and warrants to purchase up to 4,950,511 shares of SCM common stock and has determined that the merger and such issuance of shares and warrants is in the best interests of SCM and its stockholders. Accordingly, SCM s board of directors unanimously recommends that the SCM stockholders vote FOR each of the proposals put to the SCM stockholders at the SCM special meeting.

Hirsch is holding a special meeting of its shareholders in order to obtain the shareholder approval necessary to complete the merger with SCM. At the Hirsch special meeting, which will be held at [ ] a.m., local time, on [ ], 2009, at Hirsch s corporate headquarters located at 1900 Carnegie Avenue, Building B, Santa Ana, California 92705, unless postponed or adjourned to a later date, Hirsch will ask its shareholders to approve, among other items, the merger, as described in the accompanying joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

After careful consideration, Hirsch s board of directors has approved the merger and has determined that the merger is in the best interests of Hirsch and its shareholders. Accordingly, Hirsch s board of directors unanimously recommends that the Hirsch shareholders vote FOR each of the proposals put to the Hirsch shareholders at the Hirsch special meeting.

Certain Hirsch shareholders, including Lawrence W. Midland, the president of Hirsch, who in the aggregate own approximately 22% of the outstanding shares of Hirsch common stock, have entered into an irrevocable proxy and voting agreement whereby they have agreed to vote in favor of the merger.

SCM s common stock is currently listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market s National Market under the symbol SCMM and on the Prime Standard of the Frankfort Stock Exchange under the symbol SMY. On January 29, 2009, the last trading day before the date of this proxy statement/information statement and prospectus, the closing sale price of SCM common stock was \$2.66 per share.

More information about SCM, Hirsch and the proposed merger is contained in the accompanying joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus. SCM and Hirsch urge you to read the accompanying joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus carefully and in its entirety. In particular, you should carefully consider the matters discussed in the section entitled Risk Factors, beginning on page 12 of the accompanying joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

Your vote is very important, regardless of the number of shares you own of SCM or Hirsch. Please read the accompanying joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus carefully and cast your proxy vote as promptly as possible.

SCM and Hirsch are excited about the opportunities the proposed merger may bring to SCM stockholders and Hirsch shareholders, and thank you for your consideration and continued support.

Felix Marx Chief Executive Officer SCM Microsystems, Inc. Lawrence W. Midland

President

Hirsch Electronics Corporation

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved the merger or the securities of SCM to be issued in connection with the merger, or determined if this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus is adequate or accurate. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The accompanying joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus is dated [being mailed to SCM stockholders and Hirsch shareholders on or about [ ], 2009.

1, 2009, and is first

#### SCM Microsystems, Inc. Oskar-Messter-Str. 13, 85737 Ismaning, Germany

#### NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To Be Held On [ ], 2009

To SCM Microsystems, Inc. Stockholders:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a special meeting of stockholders of SCM Microsystems, Inc., a Delaware corporation, will be held at SCM s U.S. office located at 41740 Christy Street, Fremont, California 94538, on [ 2009 at [ ] a.m., local time for the following purposes:

- 1. To consider and vote upon a proposal to approve the issuance of new shares of SCM common stock, par value \$0.001 per share, and warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock, to securityholders of Hirsch, in connection with the merger proposed under the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of December 10, 2008, by and among SCM, Hirsch Electronics Corporation, a California corporation, and two wholly-owned subsidiaries of SCM, pursuant to which Hirsch will become a new Delaware limited liability company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of SCM through a two-step merger;
- 2. To consider and vote upon an adjournment of the SCM special meeting, if necessary, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes in favor of the proposal described immediately above; and

To transact such other business that properly comes before the SCM special meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

The foregoing proposals and the Agreement and Plan of Merger are more fully described in the joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus accompanying this Notice. Only SCM stockholders of record at the close of business on [ ], 2009 will be entitled to notice of, and a vote at, the SCM special meeting. At the close of business on [ ], 2009, SCM had [ ] shares of stock outstanding and entitled to vote. A list of SCM stockholders entitled to vote at the SCM special meeting will be available for inspection at SCM s principal executive offices in Ismaning, Germany and at its U.S. office in Fremont, California.

All SCM stockholders are cordially invited to attend the SCM special meeting in person. Whether or not you plan to attend the SCM special meeting in person, please sign and return the enclosed proxy card to ensure that your SCM shares will be represented at the SCM special meeting. Voting instructions are included with your SCM proxy card. You may revoke your SCM proxy card at any time prior to the SCM special meeting by following the instructions in the accompanying joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus. If you attend the SCM special meeting and vote by ballot, then your proxy vote will be revoked automatically and only your vote by ballot at the SCM special meeting will be counted. Regardless of the number shares of SCM that you own or whether or not you plan to attend the SCM special meeting, it is important that your SCM shares be represented and voted. No postage need be affixed if your proxy card is mailed in the United States.

By Order of the SCM Board of Directors,

Stephan Rohaly Secretary

Ismaning, Germany January [ ], 2009

# SCM S BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE FOR PROPOSAL 1 AND 2.

#### HIRSCH ELECTRONICS CORPORATION 1900 CARNEGIE AVENUE, BUILDING B SANTA ANA, CALIFORNIA 92705

#### NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

To Be Held On [ ], 2009

Dear Hirsch Electronics Corporation Shareholders:

- 1. To consider and vote upon a proposal to adopt the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated December 10, 2008, by and among Hirsch, SCM Microsystems, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and two wholly-owned subsidiaries of SCM Microsystems, pursuant to which Hirsch will become a new Delaware limited liability company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of SCM through a two-step merger; and
- 2. To consider and vote upon an adjournment of the Hirsch special meeting, if necessary, if a quorum is present, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes in favor of the proposal described immediately above.

The board of directors of Hirsch unanimously recommends that you vote FOR Proposal No. 1 for adoption of the Agreement and Plan of Merger and the transactions contemplated thereby and FOR Proposal No. 2 for an adjournment of the Hirsch special meeting, if necessary, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes in favor of the foregoing Proposal No. 1.

Even if you plan to attend the Hirsch special meeting in person, Hirsch requests that you sign and return the enclosed Hirsch proxy card to ensure that your Hirsch shares will be represented at the Hirsch special meeting if you are unable to attend.

By Order of the Hirsch Board of Directors,

Lawrence W. Midland President

Santa Ana, California

[ ], 2009

PLEASE DO NOT SEND IN ANY HIRSCH STOCK CERTIFICATES AT THIS TIME; FURTHER DOCUMENTATION FOR SUCH PURPOSE WILL BE SENT TO HIRSCH SHAREHOLDERS AFTER APPROVAL AND COMPLETION OF THE MERGER.

#### REFERENCE TO ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

This joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus incorporates important business and financial information about SCM from documents that SCM files with the SEC and which are not included in or delivered with this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus. You can obtain such documents, other than certain exhibits to those documents, by requesting them in writing or by telephone from SCM at the following address:

In the United States:

SCM Microsystems, Inc. 41740 Christy Street Fremont, CA 94538 +1 510-249-4883 ir@scmmicro.com

In Europe:

SCM Microsystems GmbH Oskar-Messter-Straße 13 85737 Ismaning, Germany +49 89 9595-5220 ir@scmmicro.com

You may also request more information directly from SCM s proxy solicitor, Georgeson, Inc. by sending an email to the following address: scm@georgeson.com.

You will not be charged for any documents that you request. If you would like to request documents, please do so by *[five days before meeting]*, 2009 in order to receive timely delivery of the documents in advance of the SCM special meeting. See the section entitled Where You Can Find More Information for a detailed description of the documents incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

Hirsch is not subject to the reporting requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act. Accordingly, Hirsch does not file documents with the SEC.

Information contained on the websites of SCM and Hirsch are expressly not incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

#### ABOUT THIS DOCUMENT

This joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus forms a part of a registration statement on Form S-4 (Registration No. 333- ), filed by SCM Microsystems, Inc. with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, and constitutes a prospectus of SCM under Section 5 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules thereunder, with respect to the shares of SCM common stock and warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock to be issued to securityholders of Hirsch Electronics Corporation in connection with the proposed merger and the related transactions.

In addition, this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus constitutes:

A notice of meeting with respect to the SCM special meeting at which SCM s stockholders will consider and vote on certain proposals, including the proposal regarding the issuance of SCM common stock and warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock in connection with merger;

A proxy statement under Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules thereunder, with respect to the SCM special meeting;

A notice of meeting with respect to the Hirsch special meeting at which Hirsch s shareholders will consider a proposal regarding the merger; and

An information statement with respect to the Hirsch special meeting.

#### NOTE REGARDING TRADEMARKS

Opening the Digital World is a trademark of SCM; SCM, the SCM logo, @MAXX, CHIPDRIVE and SmartOS are registered trademarks of SCM.

The Hirsch logo, the Velocity logo, ScrambleSmart, ScrambleSmartProx, MATCH, DIGI\*TRAC, Hirsch Verification Station, RUU-201, MOMENTUM, BioSmart, We Secure Buildings, Upgrade to Hirsch, The Secure Decision, DigiLock, Rapid Deployment Kit, ScrambleNet, XBox, NET\*MUX4, S\*NET, X\*NET, SNIB and SNIB2 are trademarks of Hirsch; ScramblePad, ScrambleProx and IDK are registered trademarks of Hirsch.

This joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus may also include trademarks and trade names owned by other parties, and all other such trademarks and trade names mentioned in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus are the property of their respective owners.

**Table of Contents** 

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE MERGER, THE SCM SPECIAL MEETING AND THE	
HIRSCH SPECIAL MEETING	vi
SUMMARY OF SELECTED INFORMATION	1
Information About SCM and Hirsch	1
The Merger	2
Reasons for the Merger	2
Risk Factors	3
Market Price And Dividend Information	4
Opinion of the Financial Advisor of SCM	4
Opinion of Imperial Capital, LLC to the Board of Directors of Hirsch	4
Overview of the Merger Agreement	4
Irrevocable Proxy and Voting Agreement	6
Stockholder Agreement	6
Interests of Directors, Executive Officers and Affiliates of SCM and Hirsch	7
Ownership of SCM Following the Merger	9
Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger	9
Regulatory Approvals	9
NASDAQ Stock Market Listing	10
Anticipated Accounting Treatment	10
Appraisal Rights and Dissenters Rights	10
Director and Executive Officer Compensation of SCM	10
Comparison of Stockholder Rights	10
The SCM Special Meeting of Stockholders	10
The Hirsch Special Meeting of Shareholders	11
RISK FACTORS	12
Risks Relating to the Merger	12
Risks Relating to SCM s Business	20
Risks Relating to Hirsch s Business	33
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	43
SELECTED HISTORICAL AND PRO FORMA COMBINED FINANCIAL DATA	43
Selected Historical Financial Data of SCM	43
Selected Historical Financial Data of Hirsch	45
Comparative Historical and Unaudited Pro Forma Per Share Data	47
MARKET PRICE AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION	48
THE MERGER	50
Background of the Development of the Merger	50
The SCM Reasons for the Merger	53
The Hirsch Reasons for the Merger	54
SCM Financial Projections	55

13

Hirsch Financial Projections	57
Opinion of the Financial Advisor of SCM	61

#### **Table of Contents**

Opinion of Imperial Capital, LLC to the Board of Directors of Hirsch	67
Interests of SCM Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger	75
Interests of Hirsch Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger	76
Merger Consideration	79
Appraisal Rights and Dissenters Rights	82
NASDAQ Listing of SCM Shares Issued in Connection with the Merger	84
Effective Time of the Merger	84
The Board of Directors and Management of SCM and Hirsch Following the Merger	84
Ownership of SCM Following the Merger	85
Anticipated Accounting Treatment	85
MATERIAL UNITED STATES FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE MERGER	86
THE MERGER AGREEMENT	89
General; The Merger; Structure	89
Merger Consideration	89
Adjustments to Prevent Dilution	91
Governing Documents; Directors and Officers	91
<u>Lock-Up</u>	91
<u>Legends</u>	92
Expenses of Hirsch	92
Taxes and Withholding	92
Representations and Warranties	92
Covenants of Hirsch	95
Covenants of SCM and Merger Subs	96
Certain Covenants of both SCM and Hirsch	97
Conditions to the Completion of the Merger	103
<u>Termination</u>	106
Fees and Expenses	107
Amendment	109
CERTAIN AGREEMENTS RELATED TO THE MERGER	110
Irrevocable Proxy and Voting Agreement	110
Stockholder Agreement	110
<u>Warrants</u>	111
Amendment to Rights Agreement	113
Employment Agreements with Hirsch Executive Officers	113
Non-Competition and Non-Solicitation Agreement	115
Settlement Agreement	115
Keyboards and Networks Letters of Understanding	115
Consents Related to Settlement Agreement and Letters of Understanding	116
Hirsch EMEA, Inc. Stock Purchase	116
INFORMATION ABOUT SCM	117
SCM MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND	
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS	130
<u>Overview</u>	130

ii

#### **Table of Contents**

Growth Strategies	130
Trends in SCM s Business	131
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates	132
Recent Accounting Pronouncements	134
Results of Operations	136
Research and Development	137
Selling and Marketing	138
General and Administrative	138
Comparison of Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005	140
Liquidity and Capital Resources	145
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements	146
Contractual Obligations	146
Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure	147
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	147
INFORMATION ABOUT HIRSCH	148
HIRSCH MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITIONS AND	
RESULTS OF OPERATION	155
<u>Overview</u>	155
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates	156
Recent Accounting Pronouncements	159
Results of Operations	161
Liquidity and Capital Resources	163
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements	163
Contractual Obligations	164
Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure	164
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	164
DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK	165
Authorized Capital	165
Common Stock	165
Preferred Stock	165
<u>Warrants</u>	165
Rights Agent; Transfer Agent	165
PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS OF SCM	166
PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS OF HIRSCH	169
DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMPENSATION OF SCM	171
SCM s Board of Directors	171
The Board of Directors and Management of SCM Following the Merger	171
Director Independence	173
Compensation of Directors	173
Executive Officers	175
Compensation Discussion and Analysis	177
Summary of Executive Compensation in 2008	183

iii

#### **Table of Contents**

CERTAIN SCM RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS Related Party Transaction Policy Related Party Transactions	191 191 191
COMPARISON OF SCM STOCKHOLDERS AND HIRSCH SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MATTERS	192
THE SCM SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS	201
<u>General</u>	201
Date, Time and Place of the SCM Special Meeting	201
Purpose of the SCM Special Meeting	201
Proposals to be Voted on at the SCM Special Meeting	201
Required Vote for Approval of Proposal 1 and Proposal 2	202
Record Date; SCM Stockholders Entitled to Vote	202
<u>Quorum</u>	202
Proxies; Abstentions and Broker Non-Votes	202
<u>Voting and Revocation of Proxies</u>	203
Appraisal Rights and Dissenters Rights	204
Interests of Certain Person in Matters to be Acted Upon	204
Solicitation of Proxies and Expenses	204
THE HIRSCH SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS	205
Date, Time and Place of the Hirsch Special Meeting	205
Matters to be Considered at the Hirsch Special Meeting	205
Record Date; Hirsch Shareholders Entitled to Vote	205
Voting and Revocation of Proxies	206
Required Shareholder Vote; Quorum	207
Board of Directors Unanimous Recommendations	207
Solicitation of Proxies	207
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	208
SCM Microsystems	208
Hirsch Electronics	209
Other Information	209
<u>LEGAL MATTERS</u>	209
<u>EXPERTS</u>	209
SCM MICROSYSTEMS, INC. INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	F-1
HIRSCH ELECTRONICS CORPORATION INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	F-46
SCM MICROSYSTEMS, INC. UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION	F-66

Table of Contents

**ANNEXES** 

Annex A Agreement and Plan of Merger

Annex B Irrevocable Proxy and Voting Agreement

Annex C Stockholder Agreement Annex D Form of Warrant Certificate

iv

#### **Table of Contents**

Annex E	Written Opinion of Avondale Partners, LLC
Annex F	Written Opinion of Imperial Capital, LLC
Annex G	First Amendment to SCM Rights Agreement
Annex H	Settlement Agreement between Hirsch Electronics Corporation, Secure Keyboards, Ltd. and
	Secure Networks, Ltd.
Annex I	Letters of Understanding between SCM and each of Secure Keyboards, Ltd. and
	Secure Networks, Ltd.
Annex J	Non-Competition and Non-Solicitation Agreement between SCM and Lawrence W. Midland
Annex K	Employment Agreement between Hirsch Electronics Corporation and Robert Beliles
Annex L	Employment Agreement between Hirsch Electronics Corporation and Larry Midland
Annex M	Employment Agreement between Hirsch Electronics Corporation and John Piccininni
Annex N	Employment Agreement between Hirsch Electronics Corporation and Rob Zivney
Annex O	California Corporations Code, Sections 1300-1313
EX-5.1	
EX-8.1	
EX-21.1 EX-23.1	
EX-23.2	
EX-23.3	
	V

# QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE MERGER, THE SCM SPECIAL MEETING AND THE HIRSCH SPECIAL MEETING

The following section provides answers to certain frequently asked questions about the proposed merger, SCM special meeting of stockholders and Hirsch special meeting of shareholders. Please note that this section may not address all issues that may be important to you as an SCM stockholder or a Hirsch shareholder. Accordingly, you should carefully read this entire joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus, including each of the annexes.

#### Q. Why am I receiving this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus?

A. You are receiving this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus because you are either a stockholder of SCM or a shareholder of Hirsch as of the respective record date of SCM s special meeting of its stockholders or Hirsch s special meeting of its shareholders. This joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus is being used by the boards of directors of each of SCM and Hirsch to solicit your proxy for use at the SCM special meeting and to solicit your proxy for use at the Hirsch special meeting, respectively. This joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus also serves as the prospectus for shares of SCM common stock and warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock to be issued in exchange for shares of Hirsch common stock and warrants to purchase Hirsch common stock in connection with the merger.

This joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus contains important information about the merger, the Merger Agreement, the SCM special meeting and the Hirsch special meeting, which you should read carefully before voting. The enclosed voting materials allow you to cause your shares of SCM common stock or Hirsch common stock, as the case may be, to be voted, without attending the SCM special meeting and the Hirsch special meeting in person.

#### **About the Merger**

#### Q. What is the merger?

**A.** The proposed merger is a two-step transaction that will result in the combination of the businesses of SCM and Hirsch, whereby Hirsch will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of SCM.

In exchange for their shares of Hirsch common stock and warrants to purchase shares of Hirsch common stock, the securityholders of Hirsch will receive cash, shares of SCM common stock and warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock.

More specifically, SCM, Deer Acquisition, Inc., a California corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of SCM (Merger Sub 1), Hart Acquisition LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and wholly-owned subsidiary of SCM (Merger Sub 2) and Hirsch have entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of December 10, 2008 (the Merger Agreement). The Merger Agreement contains the terms and conditions of the proposed combination of the businesses of SCM and Hirsch. Under the terms of the Merger Agreement:

Merger Sub 1 will merge with and into Hirsch, with Hirsch as the surviving corporation;

as soon as reasonably practicable thereafter, Hirsch will merge with and into Merger Sub 2, with Merger Sub 2 as the surviving entity; and

as a result of the mergers, the business and assets of Hirsch will be held by a new Delaware limited liability company and wholly-owned subsidiary of SCM (the Surviving Subsidiary ).

The transactions described above are referred to as the Merger in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

#### Q. What if the Merger is not completed?

**A.** It is possible that the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement will not be completed. This might happen if, for example, SCM s stockholders do not approve the issuance of the SCM shares and warrants in connection with the Merger, or if Hirsch s shareholders do not approve the Merger.

vi

#### **Table of Contents**

Should that occur, neither SCM nor Hirsch will be under any obligation to make or consider any alternative proposal regarding the combination of SCM and Hirsch. In certain circumstances, however, SCM or Hirsch may be obligated to pay the other party a termination fee and reimburse the other party for certain expenses, as further described in the section entitled The Merger Agreement Termination in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

#### Q. Why are SCM and Hirsch proposing to merge?

A. The board of directors of SCM has determined that the Merger and the related transactions are in the best interests of SCM and its stockholders in part because it presents a compelling strategic opportunity for SCM to strengthen its position in the security industry, expand its product offerings and customer base, and increase its operational scale, among other reasons. The board of directors of Hirsch has determined that the Merger and the related transactions are in the best interests of Hirsch and its shareholders in part because it allows Hirsch shareholders to gain access to an equity interest in SCM and to participate both in the future performance not only of Hirsch but of SCM, and positions the combined company to pursue a strategy focused on the industry trend towards convergence of logical and physical access solutions. For a complete discussion of SCM s and Hirsch s reasons for the Merger, see the section entitled The Merger Reasons for the Merger in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

#### Q. What vote is required by the SCM stockholders to consummate the Merger?

**A.** To consummate the Merger, SCM stockholders must approve the issuance of shares of SCM common stock and warrants to purchase SCM common stock in the Merger. The approval of such issuance requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares of SCM common stock present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at the SCM special meeting at which a quorum is present, whether voting in person or represented by proxy at the SCM special meeting.

#### Q. What vote is required by the Hirsch shareholders to consummate the Merger?

A. To consummate the Merger, Hirsch shareholders must approve the Merger, which requires the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding Hirsch common stock as of the record date for the Hirsch special meeting. In addition, pursuant to the Merger Agreement, a condition to SCM s obligation to complete the Merger is that the Merger shall have been approved by Hirsch shareholders holding a majority of the shares of Hirsch common stock outstanding as of the record date for the Hirsch special meeting, without including the affirmative votes of any shares of Hirsch common stock held or beneficially owned by any of Hirsch s directors who could be deemed to have a material financial interest in the Merger or any of the transactions contemplated in connection with the Merger. In addition, pursuant to the Merger Agreement, an additional condition to SCM s obligation to complete the Merger is that not more than 10% of the outstanding shares of Hirsch shall be dissenting shares which, among other things, are shares that were not voted in favor of the Merger and for which a demand for payment and appraisal has been properly made in accordance with the California Corporations Code.

#### Q. What is the irrevocable proxy and voting agreement and who are the parties to that agreement?

**A.** Each of the members of Hirsch's board of directors, members of management and their respective affiliates, have entered into an irrevocable proxy and voting agreement with SCM, the Merger Subs and Hirsch, providing that they will, solely in their capacity as Hirsch shareholders, among other things, vote all of their shares of Hirsch common stock in favor of the Merger and the adoption of the Merger Agreement and against any other action or agreement that is intended, or could reasonably be expected to, impede, interfere with, delay, postpone, or materially adversely affect the Merger or any of the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement.

The Hirsch shareholders party to the irrevocable proxy and voting agreement also granted SCM an irrevocable proxy to vote their respective shares of Hirsch common stock in accordance with such agreement on their behalf. As of January 23, 2009, Hirsch shareholders that entered into the irrevocable proxy and voting agreement owned in the aggregate 1,021,456 shares of Hirsch common stock, representing approximately 22% of the outstanding shares of Hirsch common stock. For a more complete description of the irrevocable proxy and voting agreement, see the section entitled Certain Agreements Related to the Merger Irrevocable Proxy and Voting Agreement in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

vii

#### Q. Are there other conditions that need to be satisfied to consummate the Merger?

**A.** In addition to the requirement of obtaining SCM stockholder and Hirsch shareholder approvals, each of the other closing conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement must be satisfied or waived by the appropriate party. For a summary of the conditions that need to be satisfied to consummate the Merger, see the section entitled The Merger Agreement Conditions to the Completion of the Merger in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

#### Q. What will Hirsch shareholders receive in the Merger?

- **A.** For each share of Hirsch common stock held immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger, the record holder of such share will received \$3.00 cash (without interest and less any applicable withholding taxes), two shares of SCM common stock and one warrant to purchase one share of SCM common stock at an exercise price of \$3.00, exercisable for two years following the third anniversary of the effective time of the Merger.
- Q. Will the amount of cash, number of shares of SCM common stock or number of warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock payable or issuable to Hirsch shareholders in connection with the Merger be subject to any adjustment, for example if SCM s stock price fluctuates?
- **A.** No. The amount of cash, number of shares of SCM common stock and number of warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock to be paid or issued, or reserved for issuance in connection with the Merger for each share of Hirsch common stock, is fixed.
- Q. Will SCM common stock issued in connection with the Merger be registered and listed on an exchange?
- **A.** Yes. The SCM common stock issued in connection with the Merger will be registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and will be listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market under the symbol SCMM and on the Prime Standard of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange under the symbol SMY.
- Q. Will there be any transfer restrictions affecting the shares of SCM common stock or warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock issuable to Hirsch shareholders in connection with the Merger?
- A. Yes. The shares of SCM common stock to be issued to Hirsch shareholders in connection with the Merger will be subject to a lock-up that prohibits Hirsch shareholders from, among other restrictions, selling or otherwise disposing of or transferring any shares of SCM common stock received in connection with the Merger. This lock-up is effective for six months from the closing date for 50% of the SCM common stock issued to Hirsch shareholders in connection with the Merger, and is effective for nine months from the closing date for the remainder of the shares. Consequently, the Hirsch shareholders will have to bear the economic risk of holding the SCM shares for the period of the lock-up.

Subject to certain limited exceptions, the warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock issuable to Hirsch shareholders in connection with the Merger will not be transferable by the holder without the prior written consent of SCM, and will not be listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market or otherwise publicly traded.

In addition, if you will be an employee of SCM or the Surviving Subsidiary after the closing, your shares may be subject to SCM s insider trading policies.

For more information regarding the transfer restrictions affecting the shares of SCM common stock or warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock issuable to Hirsch shareholders in connection with the Merger, see the sections entitled The Merger Agreement Lock-Up, Certain Agreements Related to the Merger Warrants, and Certain Agreements Related to the Merger Stockholder Agreement in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

#### Q. What is the stockholder agreement and who are the parties to that agreement?

**A.** Several Hirsch shareholders, including each of the members of Hirsch s board of directors, members of management and their respective affiliates, have entered into a stockholder agreement with SCM. Under the terms of the stockholder agreement, the Hirsch shareholders party thereto have agreed that for three years

viii

#### **Table of Contents**

Name

following the closing date of the Merger they will not propose or enter into any acquisition transaction or take certain other hostile actions with respect to SCM. In addition, under the terms of the stockholder agreement, Lawrence W. Midland and certain of his affiliates have agreed not to sell or transfer, or otherwise dispose of the shares of SCM common stock received in the Merger until one year after the closing date of the Merger with respect to 33% of the shares, 18 months after the closing date with respect to 33% of the shares, and two years after the closing date with respect to the remaining shares. As of January 23, 2009, the shareholders of Hirsch that entered into the stockholder agreement owned in the aggregate 1,021,456 shares of Hirsch common stock, representing approximately 22% of the outstanding Hirsch common stock. For more information regarding the stockholder agreement, see the section entitled Certain Agreements Related to the Merger Stockholder Agreement in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

#### Q. What will happen to the Hirsch options?

**A.** At the effective time of the Merger, each option to purchase shares of Hirsch common stock outstanding and unexercised immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger will be terminated and cancelled. For more information regarding the treatment of the Hirsch Options, see the section entitled The Merger Agreement Merger Consideration Treatment of Hirsch Options and Warrants in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

#### Q. What will happen to the Hirsch warrants?

**A.** At the effective time, each warrant to purchase shares of Hirsch common stock outstanding and not terminated or exercised immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger will be converted into a warrant to purchase the number of shares of SCM common stock calculated according to the conversion ratio as defined in the Merger Agreement. For more information regarding the treatment of the Hirsch Warrants and the conversion ratio, see the section entitled The Merger Agreement Merger Consideration Treatment of Hirsch Options and Warrants in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

#### Q. Will there be any change to the shares of SCM common stock held by SCM s stockholders?

**A.** No. The Merger does not result in any changes to the existing shares of SCM common stock. The current stockholders of SCM will continue to be stockholders of SCM after the Merger.

#### Q. Who will be the directors of SCM following the Merger?

**A.** Immediately following the effective time of the Merger, the board of directors of SCM is expected to be composed of the following members:

Title

Title
Chairman of the Board
Director
Director
Director
Chief Executive Officer and Director
Executive Vice President, President of the Surviving Subsidiary and Director
Chief Financial Officer and Director

Simon Turner Director

ix

#### Q. Who will be the executive officers of SCM immediately following the Merger?

**A.** Immediately following the effective time of the Merger, the executive officers of SCM are expected to be composed of the following members:

NameTitleFelix MarxChief Executive OfficerStephan RohalyVice President, Chief Financial Officer and SecretaryEang Sour ChhorExecutive Vice President, Strategy, Marketing and EngineeringLawrence W. MidlandExecutive Vice President, Hirsch Business DivisionDr. Manfred MuellerExecutive Vice President, Strategic Sales and Business

Development

#### Q. Who will be the directors of the Surviving Subsidiary immediately following the Merger?

**A.** As a result of the Merger, the Surviving Subsidiary will be a new Delaware limited liability company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of SCM. The Surviving Subsidiary will have no directors and will be managed by SCM as the sole member.

#### Q. Who will be the executive management of the Surviving Subsidiary immediately following the Merger?

**A.** Immediately following the effective time of the Merger, the executive management team of the Surviving Subsidiary is expected to be composed of the following members:

Name Title

Lawrence W. Midland President

Robert Beliles Vice President of Enterprise Business Development

John Piccininni Vice President of Sales
Robert Zivney Vice President of Marketing

# Q. What are the material U.S. federal income tax consequences of the Merger to Hirsch shareholders and warrant holders?

A. SCM and Hirsch have structured the Merger with the intent that it qualify as a reorganization under Section 368 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the Code). If the Merger qualifies as such a reorganization, Hirsch shareholders will recognize taxable income as a result of the Merger equal to the lesser of (i) the amount of cash received and (ii) the total gain on the transaction. If the Merger qualifies as such a reorganization, Hirsch warrant holders will not be subject to tax as a result of the Merger. The qualification of the Merger as a reorganization depends on numerous factors including whether Hirsch shareholders will receive a sufficient amount of SCM common stock to satisfy the continuity of interest test applicable to reorganizations under Section 368 of the Code. Whether the Merger meets that test depends in large part on the value of the SCM stock issued to Hirsch shareholders as compared to the value of all consideration issued to Hirsch shareholders. Based on an estimated valuation, the Merger should satisfy the continuity of interest test. If, however, the Internal Revenue Service were to challenge the valuation and successfully contend that the Merger failed to qualify as a reorganization, the

Merger would be a fully taxable transaction to Hirsch shareholders and warrant holders. In such case, Hirsch shareholders and warrant holders would recognize gain or loss measured by the difference between the value of all consideration received by them in the Merger and their tax basis in the Hirsch common stock and the warrants, as the case may be, surrendered in the Merger. For additional discussion of the tax treatment of the Merger, see the section entitled The Merger Material United States Income Tax Consequences of the Merger in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

#### Q: What are the material U.S. federal income tax consequences of the Merger to SCM stockholders?

**A:** SCM stockholders will not recognize a gain or loss as a result of the Merger, whether or not the Merger qualifies as a reorganization under Section 368 of the Code.

X

#### Q: Do Hirsch shareholders have appraisal or dissenters rights in connection with the Merger?

**A:** Yes. Hirsch shareholders are entitled to exercise dissenters—rights in connection with the Merger by complying with all of the California law procedures discussed in the section entitled. The Merger—Appraisal Rights and Dissenters—Rights—and in *Annex O*. To exercise dissenters—rights in connection with the Merger, a Hirsch shareholder must not vote his or her shares of Hirsch common stock in favor of the Merger and must make a written demand to have Hirsch purchase the shares at their fair market value. Failure to follow precisely any of the statutory procedures set forth in *Annex O* may result in the loss or waiver of dissenters—rights under California law.

#### Q: Do SCM stockholders have appraisal or dissenters rights in connection with the Merger?

**A:** No. SCM stockholders do not have appraisal or dissenters—rights in connection with the issuance of the shares of SCM common stock or warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock in connection with the Merger or the Merger.

#### Q. As a SCM stockholder, how does the SCM board of directors recommend that I vote?

A. After careful consideration, the SCM board of directors recommends that SCM stockholders vote:

FOR Proposal No. 1 to approve the issuance of the shares of SCM common stock and the warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock in connection with the Merger; and

FOR Proposal No. 2 to adjourn the SCM special meeting, if necessary, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes in favor of Proposal No. 1.

#### Q. As a Hirsch shareholder, how does the Hirsch board of directors recommend that I vote?

A. After careful consideration, the Hirsch board of directors recommends that Hirsch shareholders vote:

FOR Proposal No. 1 to approve and adopt the Merger and the Merger Agreement; and

FOR Proposal No. 2 to adjourn the Hirsch special meeting, if necessary, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes in favor of Proposal No. 1.

#### Q. What risks should I consider in deciding how to vote?

**A.** You should carefully read this entire joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus, including each of the annexes, and pay specific attention to the section entitled Risk Factors, which sets forth certain risks and uncertainties related to the Merger and the businesses of SCM and Hirsch.

#### Q. When do you expect the Merger to be consummated?

A. Hirsch and SCM cannot predict the exact timing of the completion of the Merger and the related transactions. We currently anticipate that the Merger will occur as soon as reasonably practicable after the satisfaction or waiver by the appropriate party of each of the closing conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement. One of the closing conditions is that the required approvals are obtained at the SCM special meeting to be held on [ ], 2009 and the Hirsch special meeting to be held [ ], 2009. For more information regarding timing, see the section

entitled The Merger Agreement Conditions to the Completion of the Merger in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

#### Q. What do SCM stockholders need to do now?

**A.** SCM urges its stockholders to read this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus carefully, including its annexes, and to consider how the Merger affects them. If you are a stockholder of SCM, you are further urged to provide your proxy instructions by mailing your signed SCM proxy card in the enclosed return envelope or by voting by telephone or via the Internet following the instructions on your proxy card. Please provide your proxy instructions only once, unless you are revoking a previously delivered proxy instruction, and as soon as possible so that your shares can be voted at the SCM special meeting.

хi

#### Q. What do Hirsch shareholders need to do now?

**A.** Hirsch urges its shareholders to read this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus carefully, including its annexes, and to consider how the Merger affects them. If you are a shareholder of Hirsch, you are further urged to provide your proxy instructions by mailing your Hirsch signed proxy in the enclosed return envelope. Please provide your proxy instructions only once, unless you are revoking a previously delivered proxy instruction, and as soon as possible so that your shares can be voted at the Hirsch special meeting.

	instruction, and as soon as possible so that your shares can be voted at the rinsen special meeting.
	About the SCM special meeting and the Hirsch special meeting
Q.	When and where is the SCM special meeting of stockholders?
<b>A.</b>	The SCM special meeting will be held at SCM s U.S. office, located at 41740 Christy Street, Fremont, California 94538, at [ ], local time, on [ ], 2009. All SCM stockholders as of the record date, or their duly appointed proxies, may attend the SCM special meeting.
Q.	When and where is the Hirsch special meeting of shareholders?
<b>A.</b>	The Hirsch special meeting will be held at Hirsch's corporate headquarters located at 1900 Carnegie Avenue, Santa Ana, California 92705, at [ ], local time, on [ ], 2009. Subject to space availability, all Hirsch shareholders as of the record date, or their duly appointed proxies, may attend the Hirsch special meeting. Since seating may be limited, admission to the Hirsch special meeting will be on a first-come, first-served basis. Registration and seating will begin at [ ], local time.
Q.	Who can attend and vote at the SCM special meeting of stockholders?
<b>A.</b>	Only holders of record of SCM common stock at the close of business on [ ], 2009 (the SCM record date ), are entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the SCM special meeting. As of the SCM record date, there were [ ] shares of SCM common stock outstanding and entitled to vote at the SCM special meeting, held by approximately [ ] holders of record. Each holder of SCM common stock is entitled to one vote for each share of SCM common stock owned as of the SCM record date.
Q.	Who can attend and vote at the Hirsch special meeting of shareholders?
<b>A.</b>	Only holders of record of Hirsch stock at the close of business on [ ], 2009 (the Hirsch record date ), are entitled to notice of and to vote at the Hirsch special meeting. As of the Hirsch record date, there were [ ] shares of Hirsch stock outstanding and entitled to vote at the Hirsch special meeting, held by approximately [ ] holders of record. Each holder of Hirsch stock is entitled to one vote for each share of Hirsch stock owned as of the Hirsch record date.
Q.	What happens if I do not return a proxy card or otherwise provide proxy instructions, as applicable?

**A.** If you are a SCM stockholder, the failure to return your proxy card or otherwise provide proxy instructions or vote your shares in person will result in your shares not being counted for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present at the SCM special meeting. In the event that a quorum is not reached or the necessary votes are not received, the SCM special meeting will have to be adjourned to provide more time to obtain a quorum and the necessary votes.

If you are a Hirsch shareholder, the failure to return your proxy or otherwise provide proxy instructions or vote your shares in person will have the same effect as voting against Hirsch Proposal No. 1 and your shares will not be counted for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present at the Hirsch special meeting. In the event that a quorum is not reached or the necessary votes are not received, the Hirsch special meeting will have to be adjourned and recalled for another vote.

#### Q. May I vote in person at the SCM special meeting of stockholders?

**A.** If your shares of SCM common stock are registered directly in your name with the SCM transfer agent, then you are considered to be the stockholder of record with respect to those shares, and the proxy materials and SCM proxy card are being sent directly to you by SCM. If you are a SCM stockholder of record, you may attend the

xii

#### **Table of Contents**

SCM special meeting and vote your shares in person. However, even if you plan to attend the SCM special meeting in person, SCM requests that you sign and return the enclosed SCM proxy card or vote your shares by telephone or via the Internet to ensure that your shares will be represented at the SCM special meeting, if you are unable to attend. If your shares of SCM common stock are held in a brokerage account or by another nominee, then you are considered the beneficial owner of shares held in street name, and the proxy materials are being forwarded to you by your broker or other nominee together with a voting instruction card to return to your broker or other nominee to direct them to vote on your behalf. As the beneficial owner, you are also invited to attend the SCM special meeting. Because a beneficial owner is not the stockholder of record, however, you may not vote these shares in person at the SCM special meeting unless you obtain a proxy from the broker, trustee or nominee that holds your shares, giving you the right to vote the shares at the meeting.

#### Q. May I vote in person at the Hirsch special meeting of shareholders?

**A.** If your shares of Hirsch common stock are registered directly in your name with Hirsch, then you are considered to be the shareholder of record with respect to those shares, and the proxy materials and Hirsch proxy are being sent directly to you by Hirsch. If you are a Hirsch shareholder of record, you may attend the Hirsch special meeting and vote your shares in person. However, even if you plan to attend the Hirsch special meeting in person, Hirsch requests that you sign and return the enclosed proxy to ensure that your shares will be represented at the Hirsch special meeting.

#### Q. If my shares are held in street name by my broker, will my broker vote my shares for me?

**A.** Unless your broker has discretionary authority to vote on certain matters, your broker will not be able to vote your shares of SCM or Hirsch stock without instructions from you. Brokers are not expected to have discretionary authority to vote for the SCM or Hirsch proposals, respectively. Therefore, in order to make sure that your vote is counted, you should instruct your broker to vote your shares following the procedures provided by your broker.

#### Q. May I change my vote after I have submitted a proxy or provided proxy instructions?

A. SCM stockholders of record may change their vote at any time before their proxy is voted at the SCM special meeting in either of the following manners: First, a stockholder of record of SCM can send a written notice to the Secretary of SCM stating that he or she would like to revoke his or her prior proxy submission. Second, a stockholder of record of SCM can attend the SCM special meeting and vote in person. Attendance alone will not revoke a proxy. If a SCM stockholder of record or a stockholder who owns SCM shares in street name has instructed a broker to vote his or her shares of SCM common stock, the stockholder must follow directions received from his or her broker to change those instructions.

Hirsch shareholders of record, other than those Hirsch shareholders who have executed voting agreements, may change their vote at any time before their proxy is voted at the Hirsch special meeting in either of the following manners: First, a shareholder of record of Hirsch can send a written notice to the Secretary of Hirsch stating that he or she would like to revoke his or her proxy. Second, a shareholder of record of Hirsch can attend the Hirsch special meeting and vote in person. Attendance alone will not revoke a proxy.

#### Q. What should a SCM stockholder do if he or she receives more than one set of voting materials?

**A.** As a SCM stockholder, you may receive more than one set of voting materials, including multiple copies of this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus and multiple SCM proxy cards or voting instruction cards. For example, if you hold your SCM shares in more than one brokerage account, you will receive a separate

voting instruction card for each brokerage account in which you hold SCM shares. If you are a holder of record and your SCM shares are registered in more than one name, you will receive more than one proxy card. In addition, if you are a holder of both SCM common stock and Hirsch common stock, you will receive one or more separate proxy cards or voting instruction cards for each company. Please complete, sign, date and return each proxy card and voting instruction card that you receive or otherwise follow the voting instructions set forth in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus in the sections entitled The SCM special meeting of Stockholders and The Hirsch special meeting of Shareholders.

xiii

#### **Table of Contents**

## Q. What should a Hirsch shareholder do if he or she receives more than one set of voting materials?

A. As a Hirsch shareholder, you may receive more than one set of voting materials, including multiple copies of this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus and multiple proxy cards or voting instruction cards. For example, if you hold your Hirsch shares in more than one brokerage account, you will receive a separate voting instruction card for each brokerage account in which you hold Hirsch shares. If you are a holder of record and your Hirsch shares are registered in more than one name, you will receive more than one proxy card. In addition, if you are a holder of both SCM common stock and Hirsch common stock, you will receive one or more separate proxy cards or voting instruction cards for each company. Please complete, sign, date and return each proxy card and voting instruction card that you receive or otherwise follow the voting instructions set forth in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus in the sections entitled The SCM special meeting of Stockholders and The Hirsch special meeting of Shareholders.

## Q. Should Hirsch shareholders send in their Hirsch stock or warrant certificates now?

**A.** No. After the Merger is completed, Hirsch shareholders will be sent written instructions for exchanging their Hirsch stock and warrant certificates for the merger consideration. *PLEASE DO NOT SEND IN YOUR HIRSCH SHARE CERTIFICATES NOW OR WITH YOUR HIRSCH PROXY CARD.* 

## Q. Who can help answer my questions?

**A.** If you are a SCM stockholder and would like additional copies, without charge, of this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus, or if you have questions about the Merger, including the procedures for voting your shares, you should contact:

In the United States:

SCM Microsystems, Inc. 41740 Christy Street Fremont, CA 94538 +1 510-249-4883 ir@scmmicro.com

In Europe:

SCM Microsystems GmbH Oskar-Messter-Straße 13 85737 Ismaning, Germany +49 89 9595-5220 ir@scmmicro.com

You may also request more information directly from SCM s proxy solicitor, Georgeson, Inc. by sending an email to the following address: scm@georgeson.com.

If you are a Hirsch shareholder, and would like additional copies, without charge, of this proxy statement/information statement and prospectus, or if you have questions about the Merger, including the procedures for voting your shares, you should contact:

Hirsch Electronics Corporation 1900 Carnegie Avenue, Building B Santa Ana, California 92705

Telephone: 949-250-8888 Extension 106

Attn: Secretary

xiv

#### **Table of Contents**

#### **SUMMARY**

This summary highlights selected information from this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus. It does not contain all of the information that may be important to you. We encourage you to carefully read this entire joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus, including annexes, and the other documents to which this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus refers, to fully understand the merger proposals to be considered at the SCM special meeting and the Hirsch special meeting.

#### **Information About SCM and Hirsch**

SCM Microsystems, Inc.

SCM Microsystems, Inc. 41740 Christy Street Fremont, CA 94538

SCM Microsystems GmbH Oskar-Messter-Straße 13 85737 Ismaning, Germany

Founded in 1990 in Munich, Germany, incorporated in Delaware in 1996 and publicly traded on both the NASDAQ Stock Market and the Prime Standard of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange, SCM designs, develops and sells hardware and system solutions that enable people to conveniently and securely access digital content and services. SCM sells its secure digital access products into two market segments: Secure Authentication and Digital Media and Connectivity. SCM s Secure Authentication products enable authentication of individuals for applications such as electronic passports and drivers licenses, electronic healthcare cards, secure logical access to PCs and networks, and physical access to facilities. In the Digital Media and Connectivity market, SCM offers commercial digital media readers that are used in digital photo kiosks to transfer digital content to and from various flash media. SCM sells its products to original equipment manufacturers, government contractors, systems integrators, large enterprises, computer manufacturers, banks, and other financial institutions.

## Hirsch Electronics Corporation

Hirsch Electronics Corporation 1900 Carnegie Avenue, Building B Santa Ana, CA. 92705

Incorporated in California in 1981, Hirsch Electronics Corporation, a privately-held corporation, designs, engineers, manufactures and markets software and hardware in the security management system/physical access control market. Hirsch s business includes full-featured electronic access control systems and a wide range of products and professional services including enterprise-class security management systems with integrated access control, intrusion detection, badging and video features. Hirsch also buys and resells various security related products, computers, peripherals and accessories. Hirsch sells its products through a dealer/systems integrator distribution channel. Hirsch products are sold in dozens of countries, and the majority of sales are located in the United States. The next most significant regions for Hirsch s business are Europe and Asia. Hirsch products are sold in every major industry segment, with the highest number of Hirsch sales occurring in market segments requiring a higher-than-average level of security effectiveness, such as government, critical infrastructure, banking, healthcare and education.

# Merger Subs

Deer Acquisition, Inc. is a California corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of SCM. Merger Sub 1 was formed solely for the purposes of carrying out the Merger and it has not conducted any business operations.

Hart Acquisition LLC is a Delaware limited liability company and wholly-owned subsidiary of SCM. Merger Sub 2 was formed solely for the purposes of carrying out the Merger and has not conducted any business operations.

1

#### **Table of Contents**

# The Merger (see page 50)

Through a two-step merger, Hirsch will become a new Delaware limited liability company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of SCM. The business of Hirsch and SCM will be combined and Merger Sub 1 will merge with and into Hirsch, with Hirsch as the surviving corporation. As soon as reasonably practicable thereafter, Hirsch will merge with and into Merger Sub 2, with Merger Sub 2 as the surviving entity.

In exchange for their shares of Hirsch common stock, Hirsch shareholders will receive \$3.00 cash (without interest and less any applicable withholding taxes), two shares of SCM common stock and a warrant to purchase one share of SCM common stock at an exercise price of \$3.00. Each warrant to purchase Hirsch common stock outstanding and not terminated or exercised immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger will be converted into a warrant to purchase shares of SCM common stock. All options to purchase shares of Hirsch common stock outstanding and unexercised immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger will be terminated and cancelled.

## Reasons for the Merger (see page 52)

## SCM's Reasons for the Merger

In reaching its unanimous decision to approve the Merger, the SCM board of directors considered a number of factors including, among other factors:

the belief of the SCM board of directors that SCM after the Merger will be better positioned to pursue and implement a strategy focused on the concept of convergence, the much anticipated industry trend which combines both the logical and physical methods of access for security systems;

the fact that both companies are strong in the U.S. government sector, but have complementary areas of concentration:

the fact that Hirsch's strength in the U.S. commercial market is complemented by SCM's activities in the enterprise and financial markets in Europe and Asia;

the belief that the Merger would increase SCM s revenues, net income and internal resources and provide greater operational scale and financial solidity; and

the results of SCM s due diligence review of Hirsch s business, finances and operations and its evaluation of Hirsch s management, competitive positions and prospects.

For a complete list of SCM s reasons for approving the Merger, see the section entitled The Merger The SCM Reasons for the Merger.

## Hirsch s Reasons for the Merger

In reaching its unanimous decision to approve the Merger, the Hirsch board of directors considered a number of factors including, among other factors:

the fact that the Merger will allow the Hirsch shareholders to gain an equity interest in SCM, thus providing a vehicle for continued participation by the Hirsch shareholders in the future performance of not only the

Surviving Subsidiary, but also of SCM;

the increased liquidity available to Hirsch shareholders through receipt of the cash portion of the consideration and the registered shares of SCM;

the belief of the Hirsch board of directors that the combined company after the Merger will be better positioned to pursue and implement a strategy focused on the concept of convergence, the much anticipated industry trend which combines both the logical and physical methods of access for security systems;

the likelihood in the judgment of the board of directors of Hirsch that the conditions to be satisfied prior to consummation of the Merger transaction will be satisfied or waived; and

2

#### **Table of Contents**

under the terms of the Merger Agreement, another party could make a superior acquisition proposal which could be accepted by the board of directors of Hirsch, and that the termination fee, payable to SCM in such situation, would not be a significant impediment to accepting such proposal.

For a complete list of Hirsch s reasons for approving the Merger, see the section entitled The Merger The Hirsch Reasons for the Merger.

Both SCM and Hirsch believe that the Merger will be in the best interests of their respective stockholders and shareholders. However, achieving these anticipated benefits of the Merger is subject to risk and uncertainty, including those risks discussed in the section entitled Risk Factors.

## Risk Factors (see page 12)

SCM and Hirsch are subject to numerous risks associated with their businesses and their industries. In addition, the Merger, including the possibility that the closing of the Merger may be delayed or not be completed at all, poses a number of unique risks to both SCM stockholders and the Hirsch shareholders, including the following risks:

SCM and Hirsch may not realize all of the anticipated benefits of the transactions;

SCM may pay a higher price for Hirsch common stock if the value of SCM common stock increases, because the value of the SCM common stock issued in connection with the Merger will depend on its market price at the time of the Merger and the exchange ratio for the Hirsch shares of common stock at the closing of the Merger is fixed;

the Merger may not qualify as a reorganization under Section 368 of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended, in which case the Merger may be a fully-taxable transaction to Hirsch shareholders;

provisions of the Merger Agreement may deter alternative business combinations;

Hirsch s current shareholders will own a large percentage of the SCM common stock after consummation of the Merger, and will have significant influence over the outcome of corporate actions requiring stockholder approval; and such shareholders priorities for SCM s business may be different from SCM s or its other stockholders:

SCM and Hirsch will incur significant transaction and merger-related costs in connection with the Merger;

if SCM or Hirsch has to pay the termination fee, it could negatively affect Hirsch s business operations or SCM s business operations;

the market price of SCM common stock could decline as a result of the large number of shares that will become eligible for sale after consummation of the Merger;

SCM may not have uncovered all the risks associated with the acquisition of Hirsch and a significant liability may be discovered after closing of the Merger, and the Merger Agreement does not provide for SCM s indemnification by the former Hirsch shareholders against any of Hirsch s liabilities, should they arise or become known after the closing of the Merger;

directors of Hirsch have interests in the transaction that may be different from, or in addition to, the interests of other Hirsch shareholders, which may influence their recommendation and vote;

there has been no public market for the Hirsch common stock and warrants to purchase Hirsch common stock, and the lack of a public market makes it extremely difficult to determine the fair market value of Hirsch; and

if the conditions to the Merger are not met or waived, the Merger will not occur.

These risks and other risks are discussed in greater detail in the section entitled Risk Factors in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus. SCM and Hirsch encourage SCM stockholders and Hirsch shareholders to read and consider all of these risks carefully.

3

#### **Table of Contents**

# **Market Price And Dividend Information (see page 48)**

The closing sale price per share of SCM common stock as reported on the NASDAQ Stock Market on December 10, 2008, the last full trading day prior to the public announcement of entry into the Merger Agreement was \$1.27, and the closing sale price per share of SCM common stock on January 29, 2009 (the last practicable date before the filing of this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus) as reported on the NASDAQ Stock Market was \$2.66 per share. Following the consummation of the Merger, SCM s common stock, including the shares of SCM common stock issued in connection with the Merger, are expected to continue to trade on the NASDAQ Stock Market under the symbol SCMM and on the Prime Standard of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange under the symbol SMY.

SCM has never declared nor paid cash dividends on its capital stock. SCM currently intends to retain earnings, if any, to finance the growth and development of its business, and does not expect to pay any cash dividends to its stockholders in the foreseeable future.

There has never been, nor is there expected to be in the future, a public market for Hirsch s ordinary shares. As of January 23, 2009, Hirsch had approximately 312 shareholders of record. Hirsch has never declared or paid any cash dividends on its capital stock, nor does it intend to do so in the foreseeable future.

For more information, see the section entitled Market Price and Dividend Information.

# **Opinion of the Financial Advisor of SCM (see page 61)**

Avondale Partners, the financial advisor of SCM, delivered a written opinion, dated December 9, 2008, addressed to the board of directors of SCM, to the effect that, as of the date of the opinion and based on and subject to various assumptions, qualifications, and limitations described in the opinion, the consideration to be to be paid by SCM in the Merger was fair, from a financial point of view, to SCM. The full text of this written opinion to the SCM board of directors, which describes, among other things, the assumptions made, procedures followed, factors considered and limitations on the review undertaken, is attached as *Annex E* to this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus. Holders of SCM common stock are encouraged to read the opinion carefully in its entirety.

# Opinion of Imperial Capital, LLC to the Board of Directors of Hirsch (see page 67)

Imperial Capital, LLC rendered a written opinion to the board of directors of Hirsch, on December 10, 2008, that, as of that date, and based on and subject to various assumptions, qualifications and limitations set forth in the opinion, the Aggregate Consideration to Non-Insiders (as defined in the opinion) was fair, from a financial point of view, to the holders of Hirsch common stock other than Lawrence W. Midland. The full text of this written opinion to the Hirsch board of directors, which describes, among other things, the assumptions made, procedures followed, factors considered and limitations on the review undertaken, is attached as *Annex F* to this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus. Holders of Hirsch common stock are encouraged to read the opinion carefully in its entirety.

## **Overview of the Merger Agreement**

The Merger Agreement contains the terms and conditions of the proposed combination of the businesses of SCM and Hirsch.

## Merger Consideration

At the effective time of the Merger, each share of issued and outstanding Hirsch common stock existing immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger will, without any action on the part of the shareholder thereof, automatically be retired and cease to exist, and be converted into the right to receive \$3.00 cash, without interest and less any applicable withholding taxes, two shares of SCM common stock, and a warrant to purchase one share of SCM common stock at an exercise price of \$3.00; provided that the following shares will not be so converted:

shares owned by SCM or the Merger Subs;

shares held by Hirsch; and

shares which are held by shareholders properly demanding and perfecting dissenter s rights pursuant to Sections 1300-1313 of the California Corporations Code.

4

#### **Table of Contents**

At the effective time, each option to purchase shares of Hirsch common stock outstanding and unexercised immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger will be terminated and cancelled, and neither SCM, the Merger Subs, nor the Surviving Subsidiary will assume or be bound by any obligation with respect to such options.

At the effective time of the Merger, each warrant to purchase shares of Hirsch common stock outstanding and not terminated or exercised immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger will be converted into a warrant to purchase the number of shares of SCM common stock equal to the number of shares of Hirsch common stock that could have been purchased upon the full exercise of such warrant, multiplied by a conversion ratio, rounded down to the nearest whole share. The per share exercise price for each new warrant to purchase SCM common stock issued in exchange for existing warrants to purchase Hirsch common stock will be determined by dividing the per share exercise price of the Hirsch common stock subject to each warrant as in effect immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger by the conversion ratio, and rounding that result up to the nearest cent. As used in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus, the term—conversion ratio—means the quotient obtained by dividing the aggregate value of the merger consideration per share, by the volume weighted average price of SCM—s common stock (as reported on the NASDAQ Stock Market) during the 30 days preceding the day prior to the day of the effective time of the Merger. For a more complete description of the merger consideration, see the section entitled—The Merger Agreement—Merger Consideration—in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

The merger consideration and conversion ratio will be appropriately and proportionately adjusted to reflect any stock dividend, subdivision, reclassification, recapitalization, split, combination, or exchange of shares with respect to SCM common stock between the date of the Merger Agreement and the effective time of the Merger.

#### **Lock-up Provisions**

The Merger Agreement provides that each Hirsch shareholder will be prohibited during the period beginning on the closing date of the Merger and continuing until the six month anniversary of the closing date from, among other restrictions, directly or indirectly, selling any shares of SCM common stock received in the Merger. During the period commencing on the day after the six month anniversary of the closing date and ending the on date of the nine month anniversary of the closing date, a Hirsch shareholder may sell or transfer only up to 50% of the SCM common stock received by such Hirsch shareholder in connection with the Merger.

#### No Solicitation

With certain exceptions, Hirsch and SCM agreed that immediately following the execution and delivery of the Merger Agreement, each of the parties and their subsidiaries would cease any and all existing activities, discussions, or negotiations with any person relating to any acquisition proposals. The parties further agreed that until the earlier of the termination of the Merger Agreement and the effective time of the Merger neither Hirsch nor SCM may, nor may any of their respective representatives or affiliates:

solicit, encourage, seek, entertain, support, assist, initiate or participate in any inquiry, negotiations or discussions, or enter into any agreement, with respect to any acquisition proposal;

disclose or furnish any information in connection with an acquisition proposal concerning the business, technologies or properties of either Hirsch or SCM, or any of their respective subsidiaries, or afford access to its properties, technologies, books or records, in connection with an acquisition proposal;

approve, endorse or recommend an acquisition proposal relating to Hirsch or SCM, respectively;

enter into any letter of intent, memorandum of understanding or other contract contemplating or otherwise relating to an acquisition proposal relating to Hirsch or SCM, respectively; or

terminate, amend or waive any rights under any standstill or other similar contract between it or any of its subsidiaries and any person (other than the other party to the Merger Agreement).

For a more complete discussion of the exclusivity provisions and permitted acquisition proposals, see the sections entitled The Merger Agreement Certain Covenants of both SCM and Hirsch Exclusivity, The

5

#### **Table of Contents**

Merger Agreement Certain Covenants of both SCM and Hirsch SCM Acquisition Proposals, and The Merger Agreement Certain Covenants of both SCM and Hirsch Hirsch Acquisition Proposals.

## Conditions to Completion of the Merger

In addition to the requirement of obtaining SCM stockholder approval and Hirsch shareholder approval, each of the other closing conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement must be satisfied or waived by the appropriate party. For a summary of the conditions that need to be satisfied to consummate the Merger, see the section entitled The Merger Agreement Conditions to the Completion of the Merger in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

## Termination of the Merger Agreement

It is possible that the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement will not be completed. This might happen if, for example, SCM s stockholders do not approve the issuance of the SCM shares and warrants in connection with the Merger, or if Hirsch s shareholders do not approve the Merger or if other conditions to the Merger are not satisfied. Should that occur, neither SCM nor Hirsch will be under any obligation to make or consider any alternative proposal regarding the combination of SCM and Hirsch. For a more complete discussion of the manners in which the Merger Agreement may terminate, see the section entitled The Merger Agreement Termination in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

#### Termination Fee

In certain circumstances, SCM or Hirsch may be obligated to pay the other party a termination fee of \$1.5 million, plus an amount equal to all out-of-pocket expenses (excluding the cost of employee time) incurred by the recipient party in connection with the Merger Agreement, the ancillary agreements, and the transactions contemplated thereby. For a more complete discussion of the termination fee, see the section entitled The Merger Agreement Termination in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

# **Irrevocable Proxy and Voting Agreement**

As of the record date, Hirsch shareholders that owned in the aggregate [ ] shares of Hirsch common stock, representing approximately [ ]% of the outstanding shares of Hirsch common stock as of the record date for the Hirsch special meeting, had entered into the irrevocable proxy and voting agreement.

The Hirsch shareholders who are parties to the irrevocable proxy and voting agreement have agreed, solely in their capacity as Hirsch shareholders and among other things, to vote all of their shares of Hirsch common stock in favor of the Merger and the adoption of the Merger Agreement, against any other Hirsch acquisition proposals, against any action or agreement that would reasonably be expected to result in a breach of the Merger Agreement by Hirsch, against any change in a majority of the individuals serving on the Hirsch board of directors as of the date of the signing of the Merger Agreement (subject to certain exceptions), and against any other action or agreement which is intended, or could reasonably be expected to, impede, interfere with, delay, postpone, or materially adversely affect the Merger or any of the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement. The Hirsch shareholders that are parties to the irrevocable proxy and voting agreement also granted SCM an irrevocable proxy to vote their respective Hirsch common stock in accordance with the terms of the irrevocable proxy and voting agreement. A copy of the irrevocable proxy and voting agreement is attached as *Annex B* to this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

## **Stockholder Agreement (see page 110)**

As of the record date for the Hirsch special meeting, the Hirsch shareholders that entered into the stockholder agreement owned in the aggregate [ ] shares of Hirsch common stock, representing approximately [ ]% of the outstanding Hirsch common stock as of the record date for the Hirsch special meeting. A brief summary of some of the material provisions of the stockholder agreements are included below, and a copy of the stockholder agreement is attached as *Annex C* to this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

6

#### **Table of Contents**

#### Standstill Provision

The stockholder agreement includes a standstill provision whereby the Hirsch shareholders who are parties to the stockholder agreement agreed to a three-year—standstill—period beginning on the closing date of the Merger. During the standstill period, such parties agreed that, subject to limited circumstances, they would not take certain actions that could be hostile to SCM, including without limitation proposing or entering into any acquisition transaction with a third party with respect to SCM, acquiring shares of SCM common stock that would result in such stockholder holding more than 10% of SCM—s outstanding shares, participating in or encouraging the solicitation of proxies with respect to SCM securities or the securities of its subsidiaries, participating in or encouraging the formation of any group which owns, seeks, or offers to acquire beneficial ownership of SCM—s voting securities or which seeks to control SCM, or otherwise act alone or in concert with others seeking or offering to control or influence the management of SCM—s board of directors or the policies of SCM or its subsidiaries.

## Lock-Up Agreement

Lawrence W. Midland and his controlled affiliates have agreed to a more restrictive lock-up arrangement than other Hirsch shareholders with respect to the shares of SCM common stock and warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock issued in connection with the Merger. Specifically, except in limited circumstances, Mr. Midland and his affiliates are prohibited from selling or transferring, or granting or lending or otherwise disposing of, such securities for up to 24 months following the closing date of the Merger. As of the record date for the Hirsch special meeting, Lawrence W. Midland and his controlled affiliates beneficially owned in the aggregate [ ] shares of Hirsch common stock, representing approximately [ ]% of the outstanding Hirsch common stock as of the record date for the Hirsch special meeting. For a more complete discussion of the lock-up agreement, see the section entitled Certain Agreements Related to the Merger Stockholder Agreement Lock-Up Agreement.

# Agreement to Vote; Election of Directors

The stockholder agreement includes a provision whereby the Hirsch shareholders who are parties to the stockholder agreement agreed that for a period of three years after the closing date of the Merger, subject to limited circumstances relating to Lawrence W. Midland s status as a director on SCM s board of directors, they will vote all shares of SCM common stock owned by them to elect any director nominee that is recommended by the majority of SCM s board of directors, remove any director if such removal is requested or approved by a majority of SCM s board of directors or the SCM nominating committee, or oppose the removal or any director unless such removal is approved by a majority of SCM s board of directors. The stockholders also granted SCM an irrevocable proxy to vote their respective SCM common stock in accordance with the stockholder agreement.

## Interests of Directors, Executive Officers and Affiliates of SCM and Hirsch (see page 75)

#### Hirsch

In considering the recommendation of the Hirsch board of directors with respect to adopting the Merger Agreement, Hirsch shareholders should be aware that certain members of the Hirsch board of directors and certain executive officers of Hirsch have interests in the Merger that may be different from, or in addition to, interests they may have as Hirsch shareholders. For example:

In connection with the Merger, the executive officers of Hirsch have entered into employment agreements with Hirsch to become effective at the closing of the Merger, including salary, bonus, severance and other benefit provisions. For a more detailed discussion of the employment agreements with the Hirsch executive officers, see the section entitled Certain Agreements Related to the Merger Employment Agreements with Hirsch

Executive Officers in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

Lawrence W. Midland, a Hirsch director and the President of Hirsch, will be appointed to the SCM board of directors immediately following the effective time of the Merger.

Upon consummation of the Merger, SCM will issue warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock to each of Hirsch soutside directors in 2008, with the number of shares subject to the warrants to be determined

7

#### **Table of Contents**

based on the conversion ratio under the Merger Agreement of warrants to purchase 3,000 shares of Hirsch common stock.

Three current directors of Hirsch hold partnership interests in Secure Keyboards, Ltd. and/or Secure Networks, Ltd., which are parties to a Settlement Agreement with Hirsch that provides for Hirsch to pay royalties based on Hirsch gross revenues to Secure Keyboards, Ltd. until December 31, 2020 and to Secure Networks, Ltd. until December 31, 2011. To the extent that consummation of the Merger results in an increased in the amount of Hirsch revenues, the amount of royalties payable under the Settlement Agreement will increase. In connection with the entry into the Merger Agreement, two of the four general partners of Secure Keyboards, Ltd. delivered a letter of understanding to SCM. In addition, the two general partners of Secure Networks, Ltd., delivered a substantially similar letter of understanding to SCM. Each letter of understanding contained certain clarifications of the SCM and Hirsch business relationship and its resulting impact on the companies respective revenue streams and on Keyboards or Networks revenue base, as applicable. For a more detailed discussion of the Settlement Agreement see the section entitled Certain Agreements Related to the Merger Settlement Agreement and Certain Agreements Related to the Merger Keyboards and Networks Letters of Understanding in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

Hirsch purchased the outstanding shares of capital stock of Hirsch EMEA, Inc., a British Virgin Island corporation, which is now a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hirsch. One of the parties from which Hirsch purchased shares of Hirsch EMEA, Inc. was tSecu, LLC, a Massachusetts limited liability company which is an affiliate of Ayman Ashour, a former director of Hirsch. For a more detailed discussion of the Hirsch EMEA purchase, see the sections entitled Certain Agreements Related to the Merger Settlement Agreement and Certain Agreements Related to the Merger Hirsch EMEA, Inc. Stock Purchase in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

For a period of three years following the effective time of the Merger, and to the extent of insurance coverage, for three additional years, the surviving entity of the Merger will, to the fullest extent permitted by law, indemnify and hold harmless the Hirsch directors and officers serving as of the date of the Merger Agreement; and for a period of six years following the effective time of the Merger, the surviving entity of the Merger will maintain, in effect, a directors and officers liability insurance policy covering the directors and officers of Hirsch, with coverage in amount and scope at least as favorable as the coverage under the existing Hirsch policy at the time the Merger becomes effective up to an aggregate premium for such policy of \$50,000.

As of the record date for the Hirsch special meeting, the directors and executive officers of Hirsch, together with their affiliates, owned in the aggregate approximately [ ] shares of Hirsch common stock, entitling them to exercise approximately [ ]% of the voting power of the Hirsch common stock at the Hirsch special meeting. Hirsch cannot complete the Merger unless the Merger is approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding Hirsch common stock as of the record date for the Hirsch special meeting.

As of the record date for the Hirsch special meeting, the directors and executive officers of Hirsch, together with their affiliates, held in the aggregate options and warrants to purchase approximately [ ] shares of Hirsch common stock. These options and warrants and any shares of Hirsch common stock issued upon the exercise thereof between the record date will not be entitled to vote at the Hirsch special meeting.

## **SCM**

No director or executive officer of SCM since December 31, 2007, nor their affiliates, have any interests in the Merger that differ from, or are in addition to, their interests as SCM stockholders. As of the record date for the SCM special meeting, the directors and executive officers of SCM, together with their affiliates, owned in the aggregate

approximately [ ] shares of SCM common stock, entitling them to exercise approximately [ ]% of the voting power of the SCM common stock at the SCM special meeting. SCM cannot complete the Merger unless the issuance of the shares of SCM common stock and warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock in connection with the Merger is approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of SCM common stock voting at the SCM special meeting.

8

#### **Table of Contents**

In addition, as of the record date for the SCM special meeting, the directors and executive officers of SCM, together with their affiliates, held in the aggregate options to purchase approximately [ ] shares of SCM common stock. These options and any shares of SCM common stock issued upon the exercise thereof will not be entitled to vote at the SCM special meeting.

## Ownership of SCM Following the Merger (see page 85)

After the Merger, Hirsch will be a wholly-owned subsidiary of SCM, and Hirsch shareholders will no longer have any direct interest in Hirsch, but will have an equity stake in SCM, the new company of Hirsch s operations. Immediately after the Merger, existing SCM stockholders are expected to own approximately 63% of the outstanding shares of SCM common stock and the former Hirsch shareholders are expected to own approximately 37% of the outstanding shares of SCM common stock. For a more complete discussion of ownership of SCM after the Merger, see the section entitled The Merger Ownership of SCM Following the Merger.

## Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger (see page 86)

SCM and Hirsch have structured the Merger with the intent that it qualify as a reorganization under Section 368 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and it is a closing condition to the Merger that the parties receive an opinion of counsel regarding such qualification. If the Merger qualifies as such a reorganization, Hirsch shareholders will recognize taxable income as a result of the Merger equal to the lesser of (i) the amount of cash received and (ii) the total gain realized on the transaction. If the Merger qualifies as such a reorganization, Hirsch warrant holders will not be subject to tax as a result of the Merger. The qualification of the Merger as a reorganization depends on numerous factors including whether Hirsch shareholders will receive a sufficient amount of SCM common stock to satisfy the continuity of interest test applicable to reorganizations under Section 368 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Whether the Merger meets that test depends in large part on the value of the SCM stock issued to Hirsch shareholders as compared to the value of all consideration (i.e., cash, stock and warrants) issued to Hirsch shareholders. If, however, the Internal Revenue Service were to challenge the valuation and successfully contend that the Merger failed to qualify as a reorganization, the Merger would be a fully taxable transaction to Hirsch shareholders and Hirsch warrant holders. In such case, Hirsch shareholders and Hirsch warrant holders would recognize gain or loss measured by the difference between the value of all consideration received by them in the Merger and their tax basis in the Hirsch common stock and warrants, as the case may be, surrendered in the Merger. SCM stockholders will not recognize gain or loss as a result of the Merger, whether or not the Merger qualifies as a reorganization under Section 368 of the Code. Neither SCM nor Hirsch will recognize gain or loss as a result of the Merger, except for any gain that might arise if SCM pays cash or property to Hirsch in connection with these transactions and such cash or property is not distributed to Hirsch shareholders. SCM does not expect any such gain to be material.

The second-step merger is intended to be treated, along with the first merger, as one integrated transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and SCM and Hirsch do not expect any further tax consequences to the SCM stockholders or the Hirsch shareholders, other than those described above.

Tax matters are very complicated, and the tax consequences of the Merger to a particular Hirsch shareholder or warrant holder will depend in part on such shareholder s or warrant holder s circumstances and jurisdiction. Accordingly, Hirsch shareholders and warrant holders should consult their tax advisors for a full understanding of the tax consequences of the Merger, including the applicability and effect of federal, state, local and foreign income and other tax laws. For additional discussion of the tax treatment of the Merger, see the section entitled The Merger Material United States Income Tax Consequences of the Merger in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

# Regulatory Approvals (see page 201)

In the United States, SCM must comply with applicable federal and state securities laws and the rules and regulations of the NASDAQ Global Market in connection with the issuance of shares of SCM common stock and warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock, and the filing of this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus with the SEC. In Germany SCM must comply with the applicable laws and regulations

9

#### **Table of Contents**

related to the issuance of shares of SCM common stock and the filing of a prospectus with the Frankfurt Stock Exchange.

## NASDAQ Stock Market Listing (see page 84)

Prior to consummation of the Merger, SCM intends to cause all shares of SCM common stock to be issued in connection with the Merger and all shares of SCM common stock to be issued upon exercise of the warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock to be approved for listing (subject to notice of issuance) on the NASDAQ Stock Market and the Prime Standard of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange as of the effective time of the Merger, including filing any required additional listing applications or notices with the NASDAQ Stock Market pursuant to NASDAQ Stock Market LLC rules.

## **Anticipated Accounting Treatment (see page 85)**

SCM will account for the acquisition of Hirsch as a purchase of the business, which means that the assets and liabilities of Hirsch will be recorded at their fair value and the results of operations of Hirsch will be included in SCM s results from and after the effective time of the Merger, in accordance with Financial Accounting Standard No. 141 (revised 2007), *Business Combinations*.

# **Appraisal Rights and Dissenters** Rights (see page 82)

SCM stockholders are not entitled to appraisal rights in connection with the Merger under Delaware General Corporation Law. Hirsch shareholders are entitled to appraisal rights in connection with the Merger under California law. For more information about such rights, see the provisions of Sections 1300 through 1313 of Chapter 13 of the California Corporations Code, attached hereto as *Annex Q*, and the section entitled The Merger Appraisal Rights and Dissenters Rights in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

Failure to follow precisely any of the statutory procedures set forth in *Annex Q* may result in the loss or waiver of dissenters—rights under California law.

### **Directors** and Executive Compensation (see page 171)

SCM currently anticipates that Werner Koepf, Dr. Hagen Hultzsch, Steven Humphreys, Dr. Hans Liebler, Felix Marx, Lawrence W. Midland, Stephan Rohaly, and Simon Turner will serve as its board of directors following completion of the Merger. For a complete discussion of the expected board of directors following the Merger, compensation of directors, and compensation of executives, see the section entitled Directors and Executive Compensation.

## **Comparison of Stockholder Rights (see page 192)**

The rights of Hirsch shareholders are currently governed by the California Corporations Code, Hirsch s articles of incorporation, as amended, and the bylaws of Hirsch. The rights of SCM stockholders are currently governed by the Delaware General Corporation Law, the Fourth Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of SCM, and the bylaws of SCM. If the Merger is completed, Hirsch shareholders will become stockholders of SCM, and their rights will be governed by the Delaware General Corporation Law, and the certificate of incorporation of SCM and bylaws of SCM. The rights of Hirsch shareholders contained in the articles of incorporation and bylaws of Hirsch differ from the rights of SCM stockholders under the certificate of incorporation of SCM and bylaws of SCM, as more fully described under the section entitled Comparison of SCM Stockholders and Hirsch Shareholders Rights and Corporate Governance Matters in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

# The SCM Special Meeting Of Stockholders (see page 201)

The SCM special meeting will be held at SCM s United States office, located at 41740 Christy Street, Fremont, California 94538, at [ ], local time, on [ ], 2009. Only holders of record of SCM common stock at the

10

#### **Table of Contents**

close of business on [ ], 2009 (the SCM record date ) are entitled to notice of, attendance at and to vote at, the SCM special meeting. As of the record date for the SCM special meeting, there were [ ] shares of SCM common stock outstanding and entitled to vote at the SCM special meeting, held by approximately [ ] holders of record. Each holder of SCM common stock is entitled to one vote for each share of SCM common stock owned as of the SCM record date.

There are two proposals at the SCM special meeting. The first proposal at the SCM special meeting is a proposal to approve the issuance of new shares of SCM common stock, par value \$0.001 per share, and warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock, to securityholders of Hirsch, in connection with Merger. The second proposal at the SCM special meeting is a proposal to consider and vote upon an adjournment of the SCM special meeting, if necessary, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes in favor of the first proposal described immediately above. If you are a SCM stockholder and fail to return your proxy card or otherwise provide proxy instructions or vote your shares in person will result in your shares not being counted for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present at the SCM special meeting. In the event that a quorum is not reached or the necessary votes are not received, the SCM special meeting will have to be adjourned and recalled to obtain a quorum and the necessary votes.

# The Hirsch Special Meeting Of Shareholders (see page 205)

The Hirsch special meeting will be held at Hirsch s Corporate Headquarters, 1900 Carnegie Avenue, Building B, Santa Ana, California 92705, at [ ], local time, on [ ], 2009. Only holders of record of Hirsch stock at the close of business on [ ], 2009 are entitled to notice of, attendance at and to vote at the Hirsch special meeting. As of the record date for the Hirsch special meeting, there were [ ] shares of Hirsch stock outstanding and entitled to vote at the Hirsch special meeting, held by approximately [ ] holders of record. Each holder of Hirsch stock is entitled to one vote for each share of Hirsch stock owned as of the Hirsch record date.

There are two proposals at the Hirsch special meeting. The first proposal at the Hirsch special meeting is a proposal to adopt the Merger Agreement. The second proposal at the Hirsch special meeting is a proposal to consider and vote upon an adjournment of the Hirsch special meeting, if necessary, if a quorum is present, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes in favor of the proposal described immediately above to satisfy each of the conditions to closing concerning the vote set forth in the Merger Agreement. If you are a Hirsch shareholder, the failure to return your proxy or otherwise provide proxy instructions or vote your shares in person will have the same effect as voting against Hirsch Proposal No. 1 and your shares will not be counted for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present at the Hirsch special meeting. In the event that a quorum is not reached or the necessary votes are not received, the Hirsch special meeting will have to be adjourned and recalled for another vote.

11

#### **Table of Contents**

#### RISK FACTORS

The Merger involves risks for SCM stockholders and Hirsch shareholders. SCM stockholders will be choosing to permit significant dilution of their percentage ownership of SCM by voting in favor of the issuance of additional shares of SCM Common Stock and warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock in order to complete the Merger. Hirsch shareholders will be choosing to no longer control 100% of Hirsch and to become stockholders of SCM by voting in favor of the Merger. In addition to the risks that their respective businesses currently face, after the Merger, SCM and the Surviving Subsidiary will be faced with a market environment that cannot be predicted and that involves significant risks, many of which will be beyond their control. These risk factors are not intended to represent a complete list of the general or specific risk factors that may affect SCM, Hirsch and the combined business, and these risk factors may not be exhaustive. You should carefully consider the risks described below and the other information contained in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus, including the matters addressed in the section entitled Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements, before deciding how to vote your shares of common stock.

# Risks Relating to the Merger

# SCM and Hirsch may not realize all of the anticipated benefits of the transactions.

To be successful after the Merger, SCM and Hirsch will need to combine and integrate the businesses and operations of their separate companies. The combination of two independent companies is a complex, costly and time-consuming process. As a result, after the Merger, the combined company will be required to devote significant management attention and resources to integrating the diverse business practices and operations of SCM and Hirsch. The integration process may divert the attention of the combined company s executive officers and management from day-to-day operations and disrupt the business of either or both of the companies and, if implemented ineffectively, preclude realization of the full benefits of the transaction expected by SCM and Hirsch. SCM has not recently completed a merger or acquisition comparable in size or scope to the transaction. The failure of the combined company, after the Merger, to meet the challenges involved in successfully integrating the operations of SCM and Hirsch or otherwise to realize any of the anticipated benefits of the Merger could cause an interruption of, or a loss of momentum in, the activities of the combined company and could adversely affect its results of operations. In addition, the overall integration of the two companies may result in unanticipated problems, expenses, liabilities, competitive responses and loss of customer relationships, and may cause SCM s stock price to decline. The difficulties of combining the operations of the companies include, among others:

maintaining employee morale and retaining key employees;

preserving important strategic and customer relationships;

the diversion of management s attention from ongoing business concerns;

coordinating geographically separate organizations;

unanticipated issues in integrating information, communications and other systems;

coordinating marketing functions;

consolidating corporate and administrative infrastructures and eliminating duplicative operations; and

integrating the cultures of SCM and Hirsch.

In addition, even if the businesses and operations of SCM and Hirsch are integrated successfully, the combined company may not fully realize the expected benefits of the Merger, including sales or growth opportunities that were anticipated, within the intended time frame, or at all. Further, because the businesses of SCM and Hirsch differ, the results of operations of the combined company and the market price of SCM common stock after the Merger may be affected by factors different from those existing prior to the Merger and may suffer as a result of the Merger. As a result, SCM and Hirsch cannot assure you that the combination of the businesses and operations of SCM with Hirsch will result in the realization of the full benefits anticipated from the Merger.

12

#### **Table of Contents**

### Provisions of the Merger Agreement may deter alternative business combinations.

Restrictions in the Merger Agreement prohibit, in certain contexts, SCM and Hirsch from soliciting any acquisition proposal or offer for a merger or business combination with any other party, including a proposal that could be advantageous to the stockholders of SCM or shareholders of Hirsch when compared to the terms and conditions of the Merger described in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus. In addition, if the Merger Agreement is terminated under certain specified circumstances relating to effecting a business combination with a different party, SCM or Hirsch may be required to pay the other a termination fee of \$1.5 million, plus an amount equal to all out-of-pocket expenses (excluding the cost of employee time) incurred by the recipient party in connection with the Merger Agreement, the ancillary agreements, and the transactions contemplated thereby. These provisions may deter third parties from proposing or pursuing alternative business combinations that could result in greater value to SCM stockholders or Hirsch shareholders than the Merger.

There has been no public market for the Hirsch common stock and warrants to purchase Hirsch common stock, and the lack of a public market makes it extremely difficult to determine the fair market value of Hirsch.

The outstanding capital stock of Hirsch is privately held and is not traded in any public market. The lack of a public market makes it extremely difficult to determine the fair market value of Hirsch. The number of shares of SCM common stock and warrants to purchase SCM common stock to be issued to Hirsch shareholders was determined based on negotiations between the parties, and it may not be indicative of the price of the Hirsch common stock and warrants to purchase Hirsch common stock may have traded at if they were traded in a public market.

The amount of merger consideration is fixed and not subject to adjustment based on the market price of SCM common stock.

The merger consideration to be received by the holders of the shares of Hirsch common stock in the Merger includes shares of SCM common stock and warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock. The Merger Agreement does not include an exchange ratio or adjustment mechanism based on the market price of SCM common stock for the determination of the amount of merger consideration that will be paid.

The value of the SCM common stock issued in the Merger will depend on its market price at the time of the Merger, as the exchange ratio for the Hirsch shares of common stock at the closing of the Merger is fixed.

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, the exchange ratio used to determine the number of shares of SCM s common stock that Hirsch shareholders will receive is unaffected by the share price of SCM s common stock, as reflected on the NASDAQ Stock Market. Increases in the value of SCM common stock will result in a higher price being paid by SCM for Hirsch common stock and more value received by Hirsch shareholders in the Merger. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, SCM will not have the right to terminate or renegotiate the Merger Agreement or to re-solicit proxies as a result of any increase in the value of SCM s outstanding common stock.

SCM common stock has historically traded at a very low volume. If substantial amounts of SCM common stock begin to trade on the open market following the end of the lock-up period, the price of SCM common stock may be materially and adversely affected.

If the current Hirsch shareholders sell, or it is perceived that they will sell, substantial amounts of SCM common stock in the public market after the lock-up lapses, the trading price of SCM common stock could be materially and adversely affected.

The market price of SCM common stock could decline as a result of the large number of shares that will become eligible for sale after consummation of the Merger.

If the Merger is consummated, the new shares of SCM common stock issued as merger consideration will become saleable beginning six months after the closing of the Merger and the warrants to purchases shares of SCM common stock will be exercisable for two years following the third anniversary of the effective time of the Merger. Consequently, after such periods, a substantial number of additional shares of SCM common stock will be eligible

13

# **Table of Contents**

for resale in the public market. Current stockholders of SCM and former shareholders of Hirsch may not wish to continue to invest in the operations of the combined company after the Merger, or for other reasons, may wish to dispose of some or all of their interests in SCM after the Merger. Sales of substantial numbers of shares of both the newly issued and the existing SCM common stock in the public market following the Merger could adversely affect the market price of such shares.

The issuance of shares of SCM common stock to Hirsch shareholders in connection with the Merger will substantially reduce the percentage ownership of current SCM stockholders.

If the transaction is completed, SCM and Hirsch expect that, based on shares of Hirsch common stock outstanding as of January 23, 2009, and assuming no options or warrants are exercised prior to close, SCM will pay, in the aggregate, approximately \$14.1 million in cash and issue approximately 9,411,470 shares of SCM common stock, and warrants to purchase an additional 4,705,735 shares of SCM common stock, as consideration for the outstanding shares of Hirsch common stock. Following the Merger, current holders of Hirsch stock are expected to own approximately 37% of the shares of SCM common stock outstanding after the Merger and current holders of SCM stock are expected to own approximately 63% of the shares of SCM common stock outstanding after the Merger. SCM stockholders will continue to own their existing shares of SCM common stock, which will not be affected by the Merger, other than by the dilution resulting from the issuance of the merger consideration described above. Based on existing warrants to purchase shares of Hirsch common stock outstanding as of January 23, 2009 and additional warrants to be issued to Hirsch directors for service in 2008, SCM will also issue warrants to purchase SCM common stock to purchase approximately 210,522 shares of SCM common stock to the holders of Hirsch warrants to purchase Hirsch common stock, in connection with the Merger. If all of the existing options to purchase shares of Hirsch common stock outstanding as of January 23, 2009 were exercised, SCM would issue up to an additional 150,000 shares of SCM common stock to current holders of Hirsch options as merger consideration. The issuance of the shares of SCM common stock and warrants to purchase SCM common stock described above will cause a significant reduction in the relative percentage interests of current SCM stockholders in earnings, voting, and liquidation, book and market value.

Hirsch s current shareholders will own a large percentage of the SCM common stock after consummation of the Merger, and will have significant influence over the outcome of corporate actions requiring stockholder approval; such shareholders priorities for SCM s business may be different from SCM s or its other stockholders.

After completion of the Merger, the former Hirsch shareholders will beneficially own approximately 37% of the outstanding SCM common stock and the current SCM stockholders will beneficially own approximately 63% of the SCM common stock. Accordingly, such former Hirsch shareholders will be able to significantly influence the outcome of any corporate transaction or other matter submitted to the SCM stockholders for approval, including the election of directors, any merger, consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of SCM s assets or any other significant corporate transaction, such that such former shareholders of Hirsch could delay or prevent a change of control of SCM, even if such a change of control would benefit SCM s other stockholders. The interests of such former Hirsch shareholders may differ from the interests of other stockholders.

# Hirsch shareholders will no longer exercise 100% control over Hirsch.

The Hirsch shareholders currently own and control 100% of Hirsch. Upon the closing of the Merger, Hirsch shareholders will become SCM stockholders and, consequently, will no longer control Hirsch. Hirsch will be transformed into a wholly-owned subsidiary of SCM and will be controlled by SCM. The former Hirsch shareholders will own 37% of the outstanding SCM common stock after the Merger.

The shares of SCM common stock to be received by Hirsch shareholders as a result of the Merger will have different rights from the shares of Hirsch common stock.

Upon completion of the Merger, Hirsch shareholders will become SCM stockholders and their rights as stockholders will be governed by SCM s certificate of incorporation and SCM s bylaws and Delaware law. The

14

#### **Table of Contents**

rights associated with Hirsch common stock are different from the rights associated with SCM common stock. Furthermore, the rights of SCM stockholders are governed by Delaware law, rather than California law. Delaware law differs from California law, including, among other things, the laws regarding appraisal rights and shareholder voting requirements. After the Merger, Hirsch shareholders will become SCM stockholders and will have rights that are different from those they have now as Hirsch shareholders. See the section entitled Comparison of Stockholders Rights and Corporate Governance Matters for a discussion of the different rights associated with SCM common stock and Hirsch common stock.

# The SCM warrants to be issued in connection with the Merger will have limited transferability and will only be exercisable for a period of two years following the third anniversary of the closing.

The warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock to be issued in connection with the Merger will not be freely transferable and will not be listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market or otherwise publicly traded. Further, the warrants cannot be exercised for a period of three years following the closing of the Merger and only have a five year term. There is no guarantee that the warrants will be in-the-money at any point during the two-year period of exercisability beginning on the third anniversary of the closing of the Merger. Consequently, the Hirsch shareholders will have to bear the economic risk of holding the warrants to purchase shares of SCM common stock during the three year period following the closing of the Merger.

# Hirsch shareholders will bear the economic risk of holding SCM shares during the lock-up period.

The shares of SCM common stock to be issued to Hirsch shareholders in connection with the Merger will be subject to a lock-up that prohibits Hirsch shareholders from, among other restrictions, selling, offering to sell, pledging, granting any option, right or warrant for the sale, lending or otherwise disposing of or transferring any shares of SCM common stock received in connection with the Merger. Other than with respect to Lawrence W. Midland and his controlled affiliates, who have a longer lock-up under the stockholder agreement, this lock-up is effective for six months from the closing date for all of the shares of SCM common stock issued to Hirsch shareholders in connection with the Merger and is effective for nine months from the closing date for 50% of the shares. Consequently, the Hirsch shareholders will have to bear the economic risk of holding the shares of SCM common stock during the period of the lock-up.

#### Standstill agreements may delay or prevent a change in the management or acquisition of SCM after the Merger.

Several Hirsch shareholders, including certain members of Hirsch's board of directors, management and/or their respective affiliates, will be subject to a three-year standstill period to begin on the closing date of the Merger. During the standstill period, such parties agreed that, subject to limited circumstances, they would not take certain actions with respect to SCM and SCM common stock including, for example, proposing or entering into any acquisition transaction with a third party with respect to SCM, acquiring shares of SCM common stock that would result in such stockholder holding more than 10% of SCM so outstanding shares, or participating in the solicitation of proxies with respect to SCM securities or the securities of its subsidiaries. After the Merger, these agreements may delay or prevent a change in management of SCM and/or a later acquisition of SCM. These commitments may not be in the best interests of the other Hirsch shareholders.

# The conditions to closing of the Merger may be waived by SCM or Hirsch without re-soliciting SCM stockholder or Hirsch shareholder approval of the Merger Agreement.

The Merger is subject to the satisfaction of the closing conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement. These conditions may be waived by SCM or Hirsch, subject to the agreement of the other party in specific cases. See The Merger Agreement Conditions to Completion of the Merger. In the event of a waiver of any condition, SCM and Hirsch will

not be required to re-solicited the SCM stockholders or Hirsch shareholders, and may complete the transaction without seeking further stockholder or shareholder approval.

15

#### **Table of Contents**

## The date on which the Merger will close is uncertain.

The date on which the Merger will close depends on the satisfaction of the closing conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement, or the waiver of those conditions by the parties thereto. While SCM and Hirsch expect to complete the Merger in the first half of 2009, the completion date of the Merger might be later than expected because of unforeseen events.

# If NASDAQ determines that the Merger will result in a change of control of SCM, SCM will be required to submit an initial listing application and meet all initial NASDAQ Stock Market inclusion criteria.

In connection with the proposed Merger, NASDAQ will review the terms and anticipated effect of the Merger to determine if a change of control will be deemed to occur under its rules. If NASDAQ determines that the Merger will result in a change of control of SCM, SCM will be required to submit an initial listing application and meet all initial NASDAQ Stock Market inclusion criteria as set forth in the Marketplace Rules of the NASDAQ Stock Market, and pay all applicable fees, before consummation of the Merger. If SCM and Hirsch are required to submit an initial listing application, NASDAQ s review of such application may take up to six to eight weeks, which could cause a delay in the Merger s consummation. There is also a risk that NASDAQ may not approve the initial listing application without substantial revision or delay, or at all.

# If the conditions to the Merger are not met or waived, the Merger will not occur.

Even if the Merger is approved by the stockholders of SCM and the shareholders of Hirsch, specified conditions must be satisfied or waived to complete the Merger. These conditions are described in the section entitled. The Merger Agreement. Conditions to the Completion of the Merger of the joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus and in the Merger Agreement attached hereto as *Annex A*. SCM and Hirsch cannot assure you that all of the conditions will be satisfied. If the conditions are not satisfied or waived, the Merger will not occur or will be delayed, which would result in the loss of some or all of the expected benefits of the Merger.

# If the Merger is not consummated, SCM may not be successful in its strategy to grow revenue and become profitable.

One of the components of SCM s growth strategy is to increase its revenues and operational scale through merger and acquisition activity. If the proposed Merger with Hirsch is not consummated, then SCM may not be able to increase its revenues or operational scale as rapidly as it has planned, or at all. If SCM is unable to increase its revenues or is not able to increase its operational scale, it may not be able to fully leverage its global infrastructure, or to pursue its other growth strategies effectively. Additionally, if the Merger is not consummated, then the financial and other resources that SCM has expended on the Merger may not be recoverable.

# Hirsch s business may be negatively affected if the Merger is not consummated and Hirsch remains a stand-alone entity.

If the Merger is not completed for any reason, the consequences could adversely affect Hirsch s business and results of operations, including the following:

Hirsch would not realize the benefits expected from becoming part of SCM, including the potentially enhanced financial and competitive position;

Hirsch may be required to pay SCM a termination fee of \$1.5 million, plus an amount equal to all out-of-pocket expenses (excluding the cost of employee time) incurred by SCM in connection with the Merger

Agreement, the ancillary agreements, and the Merger;

some costs related to the transaction, such as legal, accounting and financial advisor fees, must be paid even if the transaction is not completed;

activities relating to the transaction and related uncertainties may divert Hirsch management s attention away from the day-to-day business and cause substantial disruptions among its employees and relationships with customers and business partners, thus detracting from its ability to grow revenue and minimize costs

16

#### **Table of Contents**

and possibly leading to a loss of revenue and market position that it may not be able to regain if the Merger does not occur; and

Hirsch may be unable to locate another entity to merge with at a later date, or under terms as favorable as those in the Merger Agreement.

The Merger may not qualify as a reorganization, in which case the Merger may be a fully taxable transaction to Hirsch shareholders and warrant holders.

The parties have structured the Merger with the intent that it qualify as a reorganization under Section 368 of the Code. If the Merger qualifies as a reorganization, Hirsch shareholders will recognize taxable income equal to the lesser of (i) the amount of cash received or (ii) the total gain on the transaction. However, the qualification of the Merger as a reorganization depends on numerous factors including whether Hirsch shareholders will receive a sufficient amount of SCM common stock to satisfy the continuity of interest test applicable to reorganizations under Section 368 of the Code. Whether the Merger meets that test depends in large part on the value of the SCM common stock issued to Hirsch shareholders as compared to the value of all consideration issued to Hirsch shareholders. Based on an estimated valuation, the Merger should satisfy the continuity of interest test. If, however, the Internal Revenue Service were to challenge the valuations in the appraisal and successfully contend that the Merger failed to qualify as a reorganization, the Merger would be a fully taxable transaction to Hirsch shareholders and warrant holders. In such case, Hirsch shareholders and warrant holders would recognize gain or loss measured by the difference between the value of all consideration received by them in the Merger and their tax basis in their Hirsch common stock or warrants, as the case may be, surrendered in the Merger. For additional discussion of the tax treatment of the Merger, see the section entitled The Merger Material United States Income Tax Consequences of the Merger in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

The SCM financial projections and the Hirsch financial projections are only estimates of future results and there is no assurance that actual results will not be different.

The SCM financial projections created by SCM and the Hirsch financial projections created by Hirsch are only estimates of possible future operating results and not guarantees of future performance. The future operating results of SCM and Hirsch and the combined company will be affected by numerous factors, including those discussed in this Risk Factors—section of this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus. SCM stockholders and Hirsch shareholders should not assume that future operating results will conform to either of the SCM financial projections or the Hirsch financial projections. The actual operating results will likely differ from these financial projections.

Directors of Hirsch have interests in the transaction that may be different from, or in addition to, the interests of other Hirsch shareholders, which may influence their recommendation.

In considering the recommendation of Hirsch's board of directors, Hirsch shareholders should be aware that Hirsch's directors and executive officers have interests in the Merger and have arrangements that are different from, or in addition to, those of Hirsch shareholders generally. These interests and arrangements may create potential conflicts of interest. As a result of these interests, directors of Hirsch could be more likely to vote, and recommend to shareholders that they vote, to adopt the Merger Agreement and approve the Merger than if they did not hold these interests, and may have reasons for doing so that are not the same as the interests of other Hirsch shareholders. For a full description of the interests of directors and executive officers of Hirsch in the Merger, see The Merger Interests of Hirsch's Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger.

SCM and Hirsch both have incurred and will incur significant expenses as a result of the Merger, which will reduce the amount of capital available to fund the business after the Merger.

SCM and Hirsch have incurred, and will continue to incur, significant expenses related to the Merger. These expenses include investment banking fees, legal fees, accounting fees, and printing and other costs. There may also be unanticipated costs related to the Merger. As a result, the combined company and will have less capital available to fund its activities after the Merger.

17

#### **Table of Contents**

After the Merger, SCM will continue to incur significant costs as a result of operating as a public company, and its management may be required to devote substantial time to compliance initiatives.

As a public company, SCM currently incurs significant legal, accounting and other expenses. In addition, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as well as rules subsequently implemented by the SEC and the NASDAQ Stock Market, have imposed various requirements on public companies, including requiring establishment and maintenance of effective disclosure and financial controls and changes in corporate governance practices. SCM s management and other personnel devote a substantial amount of time and financial resources to these compliance initiatives.

After the Merger, SCM will be subject to all of the same obligations, and bringing Hirsch into compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act will require significant expenditures. Complying with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act will require significant additional expenditures, place additional demands on SCM s management and may divert management s time and attention away from the day-to-day operations of the business. These additional obligations may also require SCM to hire additional personnel after the Merger. Hirsch is currently evaluating its internal controls systems in order to enable SCM to report on, and SCM s independent registered public accounting firm after the Merger to attest to, internal controls, as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Hirsch cannot be certain as to the timing of completion of the evaluation, testing and remediation actions or the impact of the same on the operations of SCM after the Merger. If, after the Merger, SCM fails to staff its accounting and finance function adequately, or maintain internal controls adequate to meet the demands that are placed upon it as a public company, including the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, it may be unable to report its financial results accurately or in a timely manner and its business and stock price may suffer. The costs of being a public company, as well as diversion of management s time and attention, may have a material adverse effect on SCM s future business, financial condition and results of operations.

Qualified management, marketing, and sales personnel are difficult to locate, hire and train, and if SCM cannot attract and retain qualified personnel after the Merger, it will harm the ability of the business to grow.

SCM and Hirsch have each grown their businesses through the services of many people. The success of the combined company after the Merger depends, in part, on the continued service of key managerial, marketing and sales personnel. Competition for qualified management, technical, sales and marketing employees is intense. In addition, the personnel policies and practices of SCM and Hirsch may be less compatible than anticipated and some employees might leave the combined company after the Merger and go to work for competitors. SCM cannot assure you that it will be able to attract, retain and integrate employees to develop and continue its business and strategies after the Merger.

Completion of the Merger will require a significant amount of attention from Hirsch management and this diversion of management attention away from ongoing operations could adversely affect ongoing operations and business relationships.

Because completing the Merger requires a substantial amount of attention from Hirsch management, Hirsch management will divert a significant amount of its attention away from the day-to-day operations of the business. As a result, Hirsch s business relationships and ongoing operations may suffer during this period.

After the closing of the Merger, SCM faces risks of disagreements or litigation relating to the settlement agreement and letters of understanding, which may adversely affect SCM s results of operations.

Effective November 14, 1994, Hirsch entered into a settlement agreement with two limited partnerships, Secure Keyboards, Ltd. and Secure Networks, Ltd., pursuant to which Hirsch is obligated to pay a royalty of 4.25% on Hirsch revenues allocated to Secure Keyboards, Ltd. for the period from December 1, 1994 to December 31, 2020, and a royalty of 5.5% on Hirsch revenues allocated to Secure Networks, Ltd. for the period from December 1, 1994 to

December 31, 2011. In connection with the entry into the Merger Agreement, on December 10, 2008, Robert J. Parsons and Lawrence W. Midland, as two of the four general partners of Secure Keyboards, Ltd., delivered a letter of understanding to SCM, as amended and restated January 30, 2009. In addition, Robert J. Parsons and Lawrence W. Midland, as the two general partners of Secure Networks, Ltd., delivered a substantially similar

18

#### **Table of Contents**

letter of understanding to SCM, also amended and restated January 30, 2009. Each letter of understanding contained certain clarifications of the SCM and Hirsch business relationship and its resulting impact on the companies respective revenue streams and on Keyboards or Networks revenue base, as applicable. Despite the letters of understandings attempt to clarify the revenue base subject to the royalty arrangement under the settlement agreement, there is a risk that future disagreements between SCM and Secure Keyboards, Ltd. and Secure Networks, Ltd. regarding the settlement agreement and/or the letters of understanding, including disagreements regarding the revenues subject to the royalty arrangement following the Merger, could result in litigation that may cause material harm to SCM s results of operations. See the sections entitled Certain Agreements Related to the Merger Settlement Agreement and Certain Agreements Related to the Merger Letters of Understanding, for additional information about these agreements.

SCM may not have uncovered all the risks associated with the acquisition of Hirsch and a significant liability may be discovered after closing of the Merger.

There may be risks that SCM failed to discover in the course of performing its due diligence investigations related to the acquisition of Hirsch, which could result in significant liabilities arising after the consummation of the Merger. In connection with the acquisition of Hirsch, SCM will assume all of Hirsch's liabilities, both pre-existing and contingent, as a matter of law upon the exchange of all Hirsch shares of common stock. The Merger Agreement does not provide for SCM's indemnification by the former Hirsch shareholders against any of Hirsch's liabilities, should they arise or become known after the closing of the Merger. Furthermore, there is no escrow account or indemnity agreement protecting SCM in the event of any breach of Hirsch's representations and warranties in the Merger Agreement. While SCM tried to minimize risks by conducting due diligence that SCM deemed appropriate under the circumstances, SCM may not have identified all existing or potential risks. Any significant liability that may arise may harm SCM's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects by requiring SCM to expend significant funds to satisfy such liability.

The representations and warranties contained in the Merger Agreement were made solely for purposes of the contract among SCM, Hirsch, and Merger Subs, and used as a tool for allocating risk among the parties, and therefore they may not accurately characterize the actual state of facts or conditions of SCM or Hirsch.

The representations and warranties contained in the Merger Agreement were made solely for purposes of the contract among SCM, Hirsch, and Merger Subs, and are used for the purpose of allocating risk among the parties, rather than establishing matters of facts. Because the representations and warranties may not accurately characterize the actual state of facts or conditions of SCM or Hirsch, no third party should rely upon the representations and warranties in the Merger Agreement as statements of factual information.

Provisions of the Merger Agreement regarding the payment of a termination fee by SCM to Hirsch or by Hirsch to SCM could negatively affect Hirsch's business operations or SCM's business operations if the Merger Agreement is terminated.

In the event the Merger is terminated by SCM or Hirsch in circumstances that obligate either of SCM or Hirsch, as the case may be, to pay the termination fee of \$1.5 million, plus an amount equal to all out-of-pocket expenses (excluding the cost of employee time) incurred by either of SCM or Hirsch in connection with the Merger Agreement, the ancillary agreements, and the transactions contemplated thereby to the other party, the results of either of SCM s business operations or Hirsch s business operations, as the case may be, may be adversely impacted.

SCM s and Hirsch s customers may seek to change the existing business relationship with SCM and Hirsch in reaction to the announcement of the Merger.

In response to the announcement of the Merger, existing or prospective customers of SCM and Hirsch may delay or defer their purchase of products or services or other decisions concerning SCM and Hirsch, or they may seek to change their existing business relationship. Any delay or deferral in product purchase or other decisions by customers could have a material adverse effect on SCM s and Hirsch s respective business, regardless of whether the transaction is ultimately completed.

19

#### **Table of Contents**

## Risks Relating to SCM s Business

SCM s business and results of operations are subject to numerous risks, uncertainties and other factors that you should be aware of, some of which are described below. The risks, uncertainties and other factors described in the following risk factors are not the only ones facing SCM. Additional risks, uncertainties and other factors not presently known to SCM or that SCM currently deems immaterial may also impair its business operations. Any of the risks, uncertainties and other factors could have a materially adverse effect on SCM s business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows or product market share and could cause the trading price of its common stock to decline substantially.

#### SCM s stock price has been and is likely to remain volatile.

Over the past few years, the NASDAQ Stock Market and the Prime Standard of the Frankfurt Exchange have experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that have particularly affected the market prices of the stocks of technology companies. Volatility in SCM s stock price on either or both exchanges may result from a number of factors, including, among others:

low volumes of trading activity in SCM s stock, particular in the U.S.;

variations in SCM s or its competitors financial and/or operational results;

the fluctuation in market value of comparable companies in any of SCM s markets;

expected, perceived or announced relationships or transactions with third parties;

comments and forecasts by securities analysts;

trading patterns of SCM s stock on the NASDAQ Stock Market or Prime Standard of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange;

the inclusion or removal of SCM s stock from market indices, such as groups of technology stocks or other indices:

loss of key personnel;

announcements of technological innovations or new products by SCM or its competitors;

announcements of dispositions, organizational restructuring, headcount reductions, litigation or write-off of investments:

litigation developments; and

general market downturns.

In the past, companies that have experienced volatility in the market price of their stock have been the object of securities class action litigation. If SCM were the object of securities class action litigation, it could result in substantial costs and a diversion of SCM s management s attention and resources.

## SCM has incurred operating losses and may not achieve profitability.

SCM has a history of losses with an accumulated deficit of \$198.1 million as of September 30, 2008. SCM may not be able to achieve expected results, including any guidance or outlook it may provide from time to time; SCM may continue to incur losses; and it may be unable to achieve or maintain profitability.

#### SCM s quarterly and annual operating results fluctuate.

SCM s quarterly and annual operating results have varied greatly in the past and will likely vary greatly in the future depending upon a number of factors. Many of these factors are beyond its control. SCM s revenues, gross profit and operating results may fluctuate significantly from quarter to quarter due to, among other things:

business and economic conditions overall and in SCM s markets;

20

#### **Table of Contents**

the timing and amount of orders SCM receives from its customers that may be tied to budgetary cycles, seasonal demand, product plans or program roll-out schedules;

cancellations or delays of customer product orders, or the loss of a significant customer;

SCM s ability to obtain an adequate supply of components on a timely basis;

poor quality in the supply of SCM s components;

delays in the manufacture of SCM s products;

the absence of significant backlog in SCM s business;

SCM s inventory levels;

SCM s customer and distributor inventory levels and product returns;

competition;

new product announcements or introductions;

SCM s ability to develop, introduce and market new products and product enhancements on a timely basis, if at all:

SCM s ability to successfully market and sell products into new geographic or market segments;

the sales volume, product configuration and mix of products that SCM sells;

technological changes in the markets for SCM s products;

the rate of adoption of industry-wide standards;

reductions in the average selling prices that SCM is able to charge due to competition or other factors;

strategic acquisitions, sales and dispositions;

fluctuations in the value of foreign currencies against the U.S. dollar;

the timing and amount of marketing and research and development expenditures;

loss of key personnel; and

costs related to events such as dispositions, organizational restructuring, headcount reductions, litigation or write-off of investments.

Due to these and other factors, SCM s revenues may decrease from their current levels. Because a majority of its operating expenses are fixed, a small variation in SCM s revenues can cause significant variations in its operational results from quarter to quarter and its operating results may vary significantly in future periods. Therefore, SCM s

historical results may not be a reliable indicator of its future performance.

SCM is exposed to credit risk on its accounts receivable. This risk is heightened in times of economic weakness.

SCM distributes its products both through third-party resellers and directly to certain customers. A majority of SCM s outstanding trade receivables are not covered by collateral or credit insurance. SCM may not be able to monitor and limit its exposure to credit risk on its trade and non-trade receivables, and it may not be effective in limiting credit risk and avoiding losses. Additionally, if the global economy and regional economies continue to deteriorate, one or more of SCM s customers could experience a weakened financial condition and SCM could incur a material loss or losses as a result. Beginning in the third quarter of 2008, global economic uncertainty has resulted in a lower level of realization of amounts owed to SCM by some customers.

21

#### **Table of Contents**

#### Disruption in the global financial markets may adversely impact the availability and cost of credit.

SCM s ability to obtain financing for acquisitions or other general corporate and commercial purposes depends on its operating and financial performance and is also subject to prevailing economic conditions and to financial, business and other factors beyond its control. Recently, global credit markets and the financial services industry have been experiencing a period of unprecedented turmoil characterized by the bankruptcy, failure or sale of various financial institutions. As a result, an unprecedented level of intervention from the United States and other governments has been seen. As a result of such disruption, SCM s ability to raise capital may be severely restricted and the cost of raising capital through such markets or privately may increase significantly at a time when it would like, or need, to do so. Either of these events could have an impact on SCM s flexibility to pursue additional expansion or acquisition opportunities, make capital expenditures, or make another discretionary use of cash and could adversely impact its financial results. In any case, there can be no assurance that such funds, if available at all, can be obtained on terms reasonable to SCM.

# Disruption in the global financial markets may adversely impact SCM s customers and customer spending patterns.

The current financial crisis may cause consumers, businesses and governments to defer purchases in response to tighter credit, decreased cash availability and declining consumer confidence. Accordingly, demand for SCM s products could decrease and differ materially from its current expectations. Further, some of SCM s customers may require substantial financing in order to fund their operations and make purchases from SCM. The inability of these customers to obtain sufficient credit to finance purchases of SCM s products and meet their payment obligations to SCM or possible insolvencies of SCM s customers could result in decreased customer demand, an impaired ability for SCM to collect on outstanding accounts receivable, significant delays in accounts receivable payments, and significant write-offs of accounts receivable, each of which could adversely impact SCM s financial results.

#### Disruption in the global financial markets may adversely impact SCM s suppliers.

SCM s ability to meet customers demands depends, in part, on its ability to obtain timely and adequate delivery of quality materials, parts and components or products from its suppliers. Certain of SCM s components are available only from a single source or limited sources. If certain key suppliers were to become capacity constrained or insolvent as a result of the financial crisis, it could result in a reduction or interruption in supplies or a significant increase in the price of supplies, each of which would adversely impact SCM s financial results. In addition, credit constraints at key suppliers could result in accelerated payment of accounts payable by SCM, impacting SCM s cash flow.

#### It is difficult to estimate operating results prior to the end of a quarter.

SCM does not typically maintain a significant level of backlog. As a result, revenue in any quarter depends on contracts entered into or orders booked and shipped in that quarter. Historically, many of SCM s customers have tended to make a significant portion of their purchases towards the end of the quarter, in part because they believe they are able to negotiate lower prices and more favorable terms. This trend makes predicting revenues difficult. The timing of closing larger orders increases the risk of quarter-to-quarter fluctuation in revenues. If orders forecasted for a specific group of customers for a particular quarter are not realized or revenues are not otherwise recognized in that quarter, SCM s operating results for that quarter could be materially adversely affected. In addition, from time to time, SCM may experience unexpected increases or decreases in demand for its products resulting from fluctuations in its customers budgets, purchasing patterns or deployment schedules. These occurrences are not always predictable and can have a significant impact on SCM s results in the period in which they occur.

SCM is subject to a lengthy sales cycle and additional delays could result in significant fluctuations in its quarterly operating results.

SCM s initial sales cycle for a new customer usually takes a minimum of six to nine months. During this sales cycle, SCM may expend substantial financial and managerial resources with no assurance that a sale will ultimately result. The length of a new customer s sales cycle depends on a number of factors, many of which SCM may not be

22

#### **Table of Contents**

able to control. These factors include the customer s product and technical requirements and the level of competition SCM faces for that customer s business. Any delays in the sales cycle for new customers could delay or reduce SCM s receipt of new revenue and could cause SCM to expend more resources to obtain new customer wins. If SCM is unsuccessful in managing sales cycles, its business could be adversely affected.

SCM's listing on both the NASDAQ Stock Market and the Prime Standard of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange exposes its stock price to additional risks of fluctuation.

SCM s common stock is listed both on the NASDAQ Stock Market and the Prime Standard of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange and most of the trading of SCM s stock is on the Prime Standard. Because of this, factors that would not otherwise affect a stock traded solely on the NASDAQ Stock Market may cause SCM s stock price to fluctuate. For example, European investors may react differently and more positively or negatively than investors in the United States to events such as acquisitions, dispositions, one-time charges and higher or lower than expected revenue or earnings announcements. A significant positive or negative reaction by investors in Europe to such events could cause SCM s stock price to increase or decrease significantly. The European economy and market conditions in general, or downturns on the Prime Standard specifically, regardless of the NASDAQ Stock Market conditions, also could negatively impact SCM s stock price.

A significant portion of SCM s sales typically come from a small number of customers, and the loss of one or more of these customers or variability in the timing of orders could negatively impact SCM s operating results.

SCM s products are generally targeted at original equipment manufacturers (OEM) customers in the consumer electronics, digital photo processing and computer industries, as well as the government sector, the financial sector and corporate enterprises. Sales to a relatively small number of customers historically have accounted for a significant percentage of SCM s revenues. Sales to SCM s top ten customers accounted for approximately 56% of revenue in the first nine months of 2008 and 61% of revenue in fiscal year 2007. SCM expects that sales of its products to a relatively small number of customers will continue to account for a high percentage of its total sales for the foreseeable future, particularly in its Digital Media and Connectivity business, where approximately two-thirds of SCM s business has typically been generated by two or three customers. The loss of a customer or reduction of orders from a significant customer, including those due to product performance issues, changes in customer buying patterns, or market, economic or competitive conditions in its market segments, could significantly lower SCM s revenues in any period and would increase its dependence on a smaller group of its remaining customers. For example, in the third quarter of 2008, sales of SCM s digital media readers were significantly lower than in previous quarters due to variability in the timing of orders from one large customer in this business. Variations in the timing or patterns of customer orders could also increase SCM s dependence on other customers in any particular period. Dependence on a small number of customers and variations in order levels period to period could result in decreased revenues, decreased margins, and/or inventory or receivables write-offs and otherwise harm SCM s business and operating results.

Sales of SCM s products depend on the development of emerging applications in its target markets and on diversifying and expanding its customer base in new markets and geographic regions, and with new products.

SCM sells its products primarily to address emerging applications that have not yet reached a stage of mass adoption or deployment. For example, SCM sells its smart card readers for use in various smart card-based security programs in Europe, such as electronic driver—s licenses, national IDs and e-passports, which are applications that are not yet widely implemented. In recent months, SCM also has focused on expanding sales of existing product lines into new geographic markets and diversifying and expanding its customer base. For example, recently SCM has added sales resources to target authentication programs in the government and enterprise sectors in Latin America and Asia, and has begun to target the photo kiosk markets in Europe and Asia. SCM also has initiated business development

activities aimed at penetrating the worldwide financial services and enterprise markets with new contactless reader products. SCM introduced the first of these products in October 2008. Because the markets for SCM s products are still emerging, demand for SCM s products is subject to variability from period to period.

23

#### **Table of Contents**

There is no assurance that demand will become more predictable as additional smart card programs demonstrate success. If demand for products to enable smart card-based security applications does not develop further and grow sufficiently, SCM s revenue and gross profit margins could decline or fail to grow. SCM cannot predict the future growth rate, if any, or the size or composition of the market for any of its products. SCM s target markets have not consistently grown or developed as quickly as SCM has expected, and SCM has experienced delays in the development of new products designed to take advantage of new market opportunities. Since new target markets are still evolving, it is difficult to assess the competitive environment or the size of the market that may develop. The demand and market acceptance for SCM s products, as is common for new technologies, is subject to high levels of uncertainty and risk and may be influenced by various factors, including, but not limited to, the following:

general economic conditions, for example the economic uncertainty caused by the current global banking crisis;

SCM s ability to demonstrate to its potential customers and partners the value and benefits of new products;

the ability of SCM s competitors to develop and market competitive solutions for emerging applications in its target markets and its ability to win business in advance of and against such competition;

the adoption and/or continuation of industry or government regulations or policies requiring the use of products such as SCM s smart card readers;

the timing of large scale security programs involving smart cards and related technology by governments, banks and enterprises;

the ability of financial institutions, corporate enterprises, the U.S. government and other governments to agree on industry specifications and to develop and deploy security applications that will drive demand for reader solutions such as SCM s; and

the ability of high capacity flash memory cards to drive demand for digital media readers, such as SCM s, that enable rapid transfer of large amounts of data, for example digital photographs.

A significant portion of SCM s revenue is dependent upon sales to government programs, which are impacted by uncertainty of timelines and budgetary allocations, as well as by delays in developing standards for information technology (IT) projects and in coordinating all aspects of large smart card-based security programs.

Large government programs are a primary target for SCM s Secure Authentication business, as smart card technology is increasingly used to enable applications ranging from paying taxes online, to citizen identification, to receiving health care. Historically, SCM has sold a significant proportion of its Secure Authentication products to the U.S. government for PC and network access by military and federal employees, and these sales have been an important component of its overall revenue. In recent periods, SCM has experienced a significant decrease in sales of its external smart card readers to the U.S. government, primarily due to weaker demand in this market as a result of ongoing project and budget delays and a movement by the U.S. government towards purchasing computer equipment with embedded reader capabilities. SCM continues to believe that it remains a leading supplier of smart card reader technology to the U.S. government market and that it is not losing share to competitors. However, lower overall market demand and the replacement of external smart card reader sales with sales of lower-priced interface chips for embedded readers have resulted in reduced revenue from the U.S. government sector, which SCM believes is not likely to consistently return to previous levels. SCM anticipates that a significant portion of its future revenues will come from government programs outside the U.S., such as national identity, e-government, e-health and others applications. SCM currently supplies smart card readers for various government programs in Europe and Asia and is

actively targeting additional programs in these areas as well as in Latin America. SCM also has spent significant resources developing a range of e-health smart card terminals for the German government s electronic healthcard program. However, the timing of government smart card programs is not always certain and delays in program implementation are common. For example, while the German government has stated that it plans to distribute new electronic health cards to its citizens beginning in early 2009, and to put in place a corresponding network and card reader infrastructure during 2009, there have already been delays in this program and the actual timing of equipment

24

#### **Table of Contents**

and card deployments in the German e-health program remain uncertain. The continued delay of government projects for any reason could negatively impact SCM sales.

Some of SCM s sales are made through distributors, and the loss of such distributors could result in decreased revenue.

SCM currently uses distributors to sell some of its products, primarily into markets or customers where the distributor may have closer relationships or greater access than SCM. Distribution arrangements are intended to benefit both SCM and the distributor, and may be long- or short-term relationships, depending on market conditions, competition in the marketplace and other factors. If SCM is unable to maintain effective distribution channels, there could be a reduction in the amount of product the Company is able to sell, and revenues could decrease.

SCM s products may have defects, which could damage its reputation, decrease market acceptance of its products, cause it to lose customers and revenue and result in costly litigation or liability.

Products such as SCM s smart card readers and digital media readers may contain defects for many reasons, including defective design or manufacture, defective material or software interoperability issues. Often, these defects are not detected until after the products have been shipped. If any of SCM s products contain defects or perceived defects or have reliability, quality or compatibility problems or perceived problems, SCM s reputation might be damaged significantly, it could lose or experience a delay in market acceptance of the affected product or products and it might be unable to retain existing customers or attract new customers. In addition, these defects could interrupt or delay sales or SCM s ability to recognize revenue for products shipped. In the event of an actual or perceived defect or other problem, SCM may need to invest significant capital, technical, managerial and other resources to investigate and correct the potential defect or problem and potentially divert these resources from other development efforts. If SCM is unable to provide a solution to the potential defect or problem that is acceptable to its customers, it may be required to incur substantial product recall, repair and replacement and even litigation costs. These costs could have a material adverse effect on SCM s business and operating results.

SCM provides warranties on certain product sales, which range from twelve to twenty-four months, and allowances for estimated warranty costs are recorded during the period of sale. The determination of such allowances requires SCM to make estimates of product return rates and expected costs to repair or to replace the products under warranty. SCM currently establishes warranty reserves based on historical warranty costs for each product line combined with liability estimates based on the prior twelve months—sales activities. If actual return rates and/or repair and replacement costs differ significantly from SCM—s estimates, adjustments to recognize additional cost of sales may be required in future periods.

In addition, because SCM s customers rely on its Secure Authentication products to prevent unauthorized access to PCs, networks or facilities, a malfunction of or design defect in its products (or even a perceived defect) could result in legal or warranty claims against SCM for damages resulting from security breaches. If such claims are adversely decided against SCM, the potential liability could be substantial and have a material adverse effect on SCM s business and operating results. Furthermore, the possible publicity associated with any such claim, whether or not decided against SCM, could adversely affect SCM s reputation. In addition, a well-publicized security breach involving smart card-based or other security systems could adversely affect the market s perception of products like SCM s in general, or SCM s products in particular, regardless of whether the breach is actual or attributable to SCM s products. Any of the foregoing events could cause demand for SCM s products to decline, which would cause its business and operating results to suffer.

If SCM does not accurately anticipate the correct mix of products that will be sold, it may be required to record charges related to excess inventories.

Due to the unpredictable nature of the demand for its products, SCM is required to place orders with its suppliers for components, finished products and services in advance of actual customer commitments to purchase these products. Significant unanticipated fluctuations in demand could result in costly excess production or inventories. In order to minimize the negative financial impact of excess production, SCM may be required to

25

#### **Table of Contents**

significantly reduce the sales price of the product to increase demand, which in turn could result in a reduction in the value of the original inventory purchase. If SCM were to determine that it could not utilize or sell this inventory, it may be required to write down the inventory s value, which it has done in the past. Writing down inventory or reducing product prices could adversely impact SCM s cost of revenues and financial condition.

SCM s business could suffer if its third-party manufacturers cannot meet production requirements.

SCM s products are manufactured outside the United States by contract manufacturers. SCM s reliance on foreign manufacturing poses a number of risks, including, but not limited to:

difficulties in staffing;

currency fluctuations;

potentially adverse tax consequences;

unexpected changes in regulatory requirements;

tariffs and other trade barriers:

export controls;

political and economic instability;

lack of control over the manufacturing process and ultimately over the quality of SCM s products;

late delivery of SCM s products, whether because of limited access to product components, transportation delays and interruptions, difficulties in staffing, or disruptions such as natural disasters;

capacity limitations of SCM s manufacturers, particularly in the context of new large contracts for its products, whether because its manufacturers lack the required capacity or are unwilling to produce the quantities SCM desires; and

obsolescence of SCM s hardware products at the end of the manufacturing cycle.

The use of contract manufacturing requires SCM to exercise strong planning and management in order to ensure that its products are manufactured on schedule, to correct specifications and to a high standard of quality. If any of SCM s contract manufacturers cannot meet its production requirements, it may be required to rely on other contract manufacturing sources or identify and qualify new contract manufacturers. SCM may be unable to identify or qualify new contract manufacturers in a timely manner or at all or with reasonable terms and these new manufacturers may not allocate sufficient capacity to SCM in order to meet SCM s requirements. Any significant delay in SCM s ability to obtain adequate supplies of its products from its current or alternative manufacturers would materially and adversely affect its business and operating results. In addition, if SCM is not successful at managing the contract manufacturing process, the quality of its products could be jeopardized or inventories could be too low or too high, which could result in damage to SCM s reputation with its customers and in the marketplace, as well as possible write-offs of excess inventory.

SCM has a limited number of suppliers of key components, and may experience difficulties in obtaining components for which there is significant demand.

SCM relies upon a limited number of suppliers for some key components of its products. For example, SCM currently utilizes the foundry services of external suppliers to produce its ASICs for smart cards readers, and uses chips and antenna components from third-party suppliers in its contactless smart card readers. SCM s reliance on a limited number of suppliers may expose it to various risks including, without limitation, an inadequate supply of components, price increases, late deliveries and poor component quality. In addition, some of the basic components SCM uses in its products, such as digital flash media, may at any time be in great demand. This could result in components not being available to SCM in a timely manner or at all, particularly if larger companies have ordered more significant volumes of those components, or in higher prices being charged for components. Disruption or termination of the supply of components or software used in SCM s products could delay shipments of these

26

#### **Table of Contents**

products. These delays could have a material adverse effect on SCM s business and operating results and could also damage relationships with current and prospective customers.

#### SCM s markets are highly competitive.

The markets for SCM s products are competitive and characterized by rapidly changing technology. SCM believes that the principal competitive factors affecting the markets for its products include:

the extent to which products must support existing industry standards and provide interoperability;

the extent to which standards are widely adopted and product interoperability is required within industry segments;

the extent to which products are differentiated based on technical features, quality and reliability, ease of use, strength of distribution channels and price; and

the ability of suppliers to develop new products quickly to satisfy new market and customer requirements.

SCM currently experiences competition from a number of companies in each of its target market segments and it believes that competition in its markets is likely to intensify as a result of anticipated increased demand for secure digital access products. SCM may not be successful in competing against offerings from other companies and could lose business as a result.

SCM also experiences indirect competition from certain of its customers who currently offer alternative products or are expected to introduce competitive products in the future. For example, SCM sells its products to many OEMs who incorporate its products into their offerings or who resell its products in order to provide a more complete solution to their customers. If SCM s OEM customers develop their own products to replace SCM s products, this would result in a loss of sales to those customers, as well as increased competition for SCM s products in the marketplace. In addition, these OEM customers could cancel outstanding orders for SCM s products, which could cause it to write down inventory already designated for those customers. SCM may in the future face competition from these and other parties that develop digital data security products based upon approaches similar to or different from those employed by SCM. In addition, the market for digital information security and access control products may ultimately be dominated by approaches other than the approach marketed by SCM.

Many of SCM s current and potential competitors have significantly greater financial, technical, marketing, purchasing and other resources than SCM does. As a result, SCM s competitors may be able to respond more quickly to new or emerging technologies or standards and to changes in customer requirements. SCM s competitors may also be able to devote greater resources to the development, promotion and sale of products and may be able to deliver competitive products at a lower end user price. Current and potential competitors have established or may establish cooperative relationships among themselves or with third parties to increase the ability of their products to address the needs of SCM s prospective customers. Therefore, new competitors, or alliances among competitors, may emerge and rapidly acquire significant market share. Increased competition is likely to result in price reductions, reduced operating margins and loss of market share.

## SCM may have to take back unsold inventory from its customers.

If demand is less than anticipated, customers may ask that SCM accept returned products that they do not believe they can sell. SCM does not have a policy relating to product returns; *however*, SCM may determine that it is in its best interest to accept returns in order to maintain good relations with its customers. If SCM were to accept product

returns, it may be required to take additional inventory reserves to reflect the decreased market value of slow-selling returned inventory, even if the products are in good working order.

Changes in tax laws or the interpretation thereof, adverse tax audits and other tax matters may adversely affect SCM s future results.

A number of factors impact SCM s tax position, including:

the jurisdictions in which profits are determined to be earned and taxed;

27

#### **Table of Contents**

the resolution of issues arising from tax audits with various tax authorities;

changes in the valuation of SCM s deferred tax assets and liabilities;

adjustments to estimated taxes upon finalization of various tax returns;

increases in expenses not deductible for tax purposes; and

the repatriation of non-U.S. earnings for which SCM has not previously provided for U.S. taxes.

Each of these factors makes it more difficult for SCM to project or achieve expected tax results. An increase or decrease in SCM s tax liabilities due to these or other factors could adversely affect its financial results in future periods.

Large stock holdings outside the U.S. make it difficult for SCM to achieve a quorum at stockholder meetings and this could restrict, delay or prevent its ability to implement future corporate actions, as well as have other effects, such as the delisting of SCM s stock from the NASDAQ Stock Market.

To achieve a quorum at a regular or special stockholder meeting, at least one-third of all shares of SCM s stock entitled to vote must be present at such a meeting in person or by proxy. In addition, certain actions, including the approval of a significant transaction, may require approval of a majority of the total number of SCM s shares then outstanding. As of [ ], 2009, the record date for SCM s special meeting, approximately []% of SCM s shares outstanding were held by retail stockholders in Germany, through German banks and brokers. Securities regulations and business customs in Germany result in very few German banks and brokers providing SCM s proxy materials to its stockholders in Germany and in very few German stockholders voting their shares even when they do receive such materials. In addition, the absence of a routine broker non-vote in Germany typically requires the stockholder to return the proxy card to SCM before the votes it represents can be counted for purposes of establishing a quorum.

As a result, it is often difficult and costly for SCM, and requires considerable management resources, to achieve a quorum at annual and special meetings of its stockholders. If SCM is unable to achieve a quorum or the required approval of a matter at a future annual or special meeting of its stockholders, corporate actions requiring stockholder approval could be restricted, delayed or even prevented. These include, but are not limited to, actions and transactions that may be of benefit to SCM s stockholders, part of its strategic plan or necessary for its corporate governance, such as the Merger and related actions and corporate mergers, acquisitions, dispositions, sales or reorganizations, financings, stock incentive plans or the election of directors. Even if SCM is able to achieve a quorum for a particular meeting, some of these actions or transactions require the approval of a majority of the total number of SCM s shares then outstanding, and it may not be successful in obtaining such approval. The failure to hold an annual meeting of stockholders may also result in SCM being out of compliance with Delaware law and the qualitative listing requirements of the NASDAQ Stock Market, each of which requires SCM to hold an annual meeting of its stockholders. SCM s inability to obtain a quorum at any such meeting may not be an adequate excuse for such failure. Lack of compliance with the qualitative listing requirements of the NASDAQ Stock Market could result in the delisting of SCM s common stock on the NASDAQ Stock Market. Either of these events would divert management s attention from SCM s operations and would likely be costly and could also have an adverse effect on the trading price of the SCM s common stock.

One of SCM s directors is a partner in the largest shareholder of SCM, and both of them have significant influence over the outcome of corporate actions requiring board and shareholder approval, respectively; however, the shareholder s priorities for SCM s business may be different from SCM s or its other shareholders.

As of December 31, 2008, Lincoln Vale European Partners (Lincoln Vale) holds nearly 10% of the outstanding shares of SCM is common stock. Dr. Hans Liebler, one of SCM is directors, is a partner of Lincoln Vale and may also be deemed to beneficially own, either directly or indirectly through limited partnerships, the shares invested by Lincoln Vale in SCM. Accordingly, Dr. Liebler and/or Lincoln Vale could have significant influence over the outcome of corporate actions requiring board and shareholder approval, respectively, including the election of directors, any merger, consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of SCM is assets or any other significant

28

#### **Table of Contents**

corporate transaction. In addition, Dr. Liebler and/or Lincoln Vale could delay or prevent a change of control of SCM, even if such a change of control would benefit SCM s other shareholders. SCM cannot assure you that Lincoln Vale s objectives are aligned with those of the other shareholders.

SCM has global operations, which require significant financial, managerial and administrative resources.

SCM s business model includes the management of separate product lines that address disparate market opportunities that are geographically dispersed. While there is some shared technology across its products, each product line requires significant research and development effort to address the evolving needs of SCM s customers and markets. To support its development and sales efforts, SCM maintains company offices and business operations in several locations around the world, including Germany, Hong Kong, India, Japan and the United States. SCM also must manage contract manufacturers in several different countries, including, China and Singapore. Managing its various development, sales, administrative and manufacturing operations places a significant burden on SCM s financial systems and has resulted in a level of operational spending that is disproportionately high compared to SCM s current revenue levels.

Operating in diverse geographic locations also imposes significant burdens on SCM s managerial resources. In particular, SCM s management must:

divert a significant amount of time and energy to manage employees and contractors from diverse cultural backgrounds and who speak different languages;

travel between SCM s different company offices;

maintain sufficient internal financial controls in multiple geographic locations that may have different control environments:

manage different product lines for different markets;

manage SCM s supply and distribution channels across different countries and business practices; and

coordinate these efforts to produce an integrated business effort, focus and vision.

SCM conducts a significant portion of its operations outside the United States. Economic, political, regulatory and other risks associated with international sales and operations could have an adverse effect on SCM s results of operations.

In addition to its corporate headquarters being located in Germany, SCM conducts a substantial portion of its business in Europe and Asia. Approximately 63% of SCM s revenue for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and approximately 49% of its revenue for the year ended December 31, 2007 was derived from customers located outside the United States. Because a significant number of its principal customers are located in other countries, SCM anticipates that international sales will continue to account for a substantial portion of its revenues. As a result, a significant portion of SCM s sales and operations may continue to be subject to risks associated with foreign operations, any of which could impact its sales and/or operational performance. These risks include, but are not limited to:

changes in foreign currency exchange rates;

changes in a specific country s or region s political or economic conditions and stability, particularly in emerging markets;

unexpected changes in foreign laws and regulatory requirements;

potentially adverse tax consequences;

longer accounts receivable collection cycles;

difficulty in managing widespread sales and manufacturing operations; and

less effective protection of intellectual property.

29

#### **Table of Contents**

Fluctuations in the valuation of foreign currencies impact costs and/or revenues SCM discloses in U.S. dollars, and could result in foreign currency losses.

A significant portion of SCM s business is conducted in foreign currencies, principally the Euro. Fluctuations in the value of foreign currencies relative to the U.S. dollar will continue to cause currency exchange gains and losses. If a significant portion of operating expenses are incurred in a foreign currency such as the Euro, and revenues are generated in U.S. dollars, exchange rate fluctuations might have a positive or negative net financial impact on these transactions, depending on whether the U.S. dollar devalues or revalues compared to the Euro. For example, excluding a one-time severance payment made to its former chief executive officer in the second quarter of 2007, SCM s general and administrative expenses in the first half of 2008 were higher than in the same period of the previous year, primarily due to the devaluation of the dollar as compared with the Euro. In addition, the valuation of current assets and liabilities that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency can result in currency exchange gains and losses. For example when an SCM subsidiary has the Euro as the functional currency, and this subsidiary has a receivable in U.S. dollars, a devaluation of the U.S. dollar against the Euro of 10% would result in a foreign exchange loss of the reporting entity of 10% of the value of the underlying U.S. dollar receivable. SCM cannot predict the effect of exchange rate fluctuations upon future quarterly and annual operating results. The effect of currency exchange rate changes may increase or decrease SCM s costs and/or revenues in any given quarter, and it may experience currency losses in the future. To date, SCM has not adopted a hedging program to protect it from risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations.

# SCM s key personnel and directors are critical to its business, and such key personnel may not remain with SCM in the future.

SCM depends on the continued employment of its senior executive officers and other key management and technical personnel. If any of its key personnel were to leave and not be replaced with sufficiently qualified and experienced personnel, SCM s business could be adversely affected. In particular, SCM s current strategy to penetrate the market for contactless payment solutions is heavily dependent on the vision, leadership and experience of its chief executive officer, Felix Marx.

SCM also believes that its future success will depend in large part on its ability to attract and retain highly qualified technical and management personnel. However, competition for such personnel is intense. SCM may not be able to retain its key technical and management employees or to attract, assimilate or retain other highly qualified technical and management personnel in the future.

Likewise, as a small, dual-traded company, SCM is challenged to identify, attract and retain experienced professionals with diverse skills and backgrounds who are qualified and willing to serve on its board of directors. The increased burden of regulatory compliance under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 creates additional liability and exposure for directors, and financial losses in SCM s business and lack of growth in its stock price make it difficult for SCM to offer attractive director compensation packages. If SCM is not able to attract and retain qualified board members, its ability to practice a high level of corporate governance could be impaired.

#### SCM faces risks associated with strategic transactions.

A component of SCM s ongoing business strategy is to seek to buy businesses, products and technologies that complement or augment its existing businesses, products and technologies. SCM has in the past acquired or made, and from time to time in the future may acquire or make, investments in companies, products and technologies that it believes are complementary to its existing businesses, products and technologies. Any future acquisition could expose SCM to significant risks, including, without limitation, the use of its limited cash balances or potentially dilutive stock

offerings to fund such acquisitions; costs of any necessary financing, which may not be available on reasonable terms or at all; accounting charges SCM might incur in connection with such acquisitions; the difficulty and expense of integrating personnel, technologies, customer, supplier and distributor relationships, marketing efforts and facilities acquired through acquisitions; integrating internal controls over financial reporting; discovering and correcting deficiencies in internal controls and other regulatory compliance, data adequacy and integrity, product quality and product liabilities; diversion of management resources; failure to realize anticipated benefits; costly fees for legal and transaction-related services; and the unanticipated assumption of liabilities. Any of the

30

#### **Table of Contents**

foregoing could have a material adverse effect on SCM s financial condition and results of operations. SCM may not be successful with any such acquisition.

SCM s business strategy also contemplates divesting portions of its business from time to time, if and when it believes it would be able to realize greater value for its stockholders in so doing. SCM has in the past sold, and may from time to time in the future sell, all or one or more portions of its business. Any divestiture or disposition could expose SCM to significant risks, including, without limitation, costly fees for legal and transaction-related services; diversion of management resources; loss of key personnel; and reduction in revenue. Further, SCM may be required to retain or indemnify the buyer against certain liabilities and obligations in connection with any such divestiture or disposition and it may also become subject to third-party claims arising out of such divestiture or disposition. In addition, SCM may not achieve the expected price in a divestiture transaction. Failure to overcome these risks could have a material adverse effect on SCM s financial condition and results of operations.

#### SCM may be exposed to risks of intellectual property infringement by third parties.

SCM s success depends significantly upon its proprietary technology. SCM currently relies on a combination of patent, copyright and trademark laws, trade secrets, confidentiality agreements and contractual provisions to protect its proprietary rights, which afford only limited protection. SCM may not be successful in protecting its proprietary technology through patents, it is possible that no new patents will be issued, that its proprietary products or technologies are not patentable or that any issued patent will fail to provide SCM with any competitive advantages.

There has been a great deal of litigation in the technology industry regarding intellectual property rights, and from time to time SCM may be required to use litigation to protect its proprietary technology. This may result in SCM incurring substantial costs and it may not be successful in any such litigation.

Despite SCM s efforts to protect its proprietary rights, unauthorized parties may attempt to copy aspects of its products or to use its proprietary information and software without authorization. In addition, the laws of some foreign countries do not protect proprietary and intellectual property rights to the same extent as do the laws of the United States. Because many of its products are sold and a significant portion of its business is conducted outside the United States, SCM s exposure to intellectual property risks may be higher. SCM s means of protecting its proprietary and intellectual property rights may not be adequate. There is a risk that SCM s competitors will independently develop similar technology or duplicate its products or design around patents or other intellectual property rights. If SCM is unsuccessful in protecting its intellectual property or its products or technologies are duplicated by others, its business could be harmed.

Changes to financial accounting standards may affect SCM s results of operations and cause SCM to change its business practices.

SCM prepares its financial statements to conform with U.S. GAAP. These accounting principles are subject to interpretation by the Financial Standards Accounting Board, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Securities and Exchange Commission and various other bodies formed to interpret and create appropriate accounting rules and policies. A change in those rules or policies could have a significant effect on SCM s reported results and may affect its reporting of transactions completed before a change is announced. Any changes in accounting rules or policies in the future may result in significant accounting charges.

SCM faces costs and risks associated with maintaining effective internal controls over financial reporting, and if it fails to achieve and maintain adequate internal controls over financial reporting, its business, results of operations and financial condition, and investors confidence in SCM could be materially affected.

Under Sections 302 and 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, SCM s management is required to make certain assessments and certifications regarding its disclosure controls and internal controls over financial reporting. SCM has dedicated, and expects to continue to dedicate, significant management, financial and other resources in connection with its compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. The process of maintaining and evaluating the effectiveness of these controls is expensive, time-consuming and requires significant

31

#### **Table of Contents**

attention from SCM s management and staff. During the course of its evaluation, SCM may identify areas requiring improvement and may be required to design enhanced processes and controls to address issues identified through this review. This could result in significant delays and costs to SCM and require it to divert substantial resources, including management time from other activities. SCM has found a material weakness in its internal controls in the past and cannot be certain in the future that it will be able to report that its controls are without material weakness or to complete its evaluation of those controls in a timely fashion.

If SCM fails to maintain an effective system of disclosure controls or internal control over financial reporting, it may not be able to rely on the integrity of its financial results, which could result in inaccurate or late reporting of its financial results and investigation by regulatory authorities. If SCM fails to achieve and maintain adequate internal controls, the financial position of its business could be harmed; current and potential future shareholders could lose confidence in SCM and/or its reported financial results, which may cause a negative effect on the trading price of its common stock; and SCM could be exposed to litigation or regulatory proceedings, which may be costly or divert management attention.

In addition, all internal control systems, no matter how well designed and operated, can only provide reasonable assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Because there are inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within SCM have been or will be detected. Projections of any evaluation of controls effectiveness to future periods are subject to risks. Over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or deterioration in the degree of compliance with policies or procedures. Any failure of SCM s internal control systems to be effective could adversely affect its business.

#### SCM faces risks from litigation.

From time to time, SCM may be subject to litigation, which could include, among other things, claims regarding infringement of the intellectual property rights of third parties, product defects, employment-related claims, and claims related to acquisitions, dispositions or restructurings. Any such claims or litigation may be time-consuming and costly, divert management resources, cause product shipment delays, require SCM to redesign its products, require SCM to accept returns of products and to write off inventory, or have other adverse effects on its business. Any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on SCM s results of operations and could require SCM to pay significant monetary damages.

SCM expects the likelihood of intellectual property infringement and misappropriation claims may increase as the number of products and competitors in its markets grows and as it increasingly incorporates third-party technology into its products. As a result of infringement claims, SCM could be required to license intellectual property from a third-party or redesign its products. Licenses may not be offered when needed or on acceptable terms. If SCM does obtain licenses from third parties, it may be required to pay license fees or royalty payments or it may be required to license some of its intellectual property to others in return for such licenses. If SCM is unable to obtain a license that is necessary for it or its third-party manufacturers to manufacture its allegedly infringing products, SCM could be required to suspend the manufacture of products or stop its suppliers from using processes that may infringe the rights of third parties. SCM also may be unsuccessful in redesigning its products. SCM suppliers and customers may be subject to infringement claims based on intellectual property included in its products. SCM historically has agreed to indemnify its suppliers and customers for patent infringement claims relating to its products. The scope of this indemnity varies, but may, in some instances, include indemnification for damages and expenses, including attorney s fees. SCM may periodically engage in litigation as a result of these indemnification obligations. SCM s insurance policies exclude coverage for third-party claims for patent infringement.

Provisions in SCM s agreements, charter documents, Delaware law and SCM s rights plan may delay or prevent the acquisition of SCM by another company, which could decrease the value of your shares.

SCM s certificate of incorporation and bylaws and Delaware law contain provisions that could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire SCM or enter into a material transaction with SCM without the consent of SCM s board of directors. These provisions include a classified board of directors and limitations on actions by

32

#### **Table of Contents**

SCM s stockholders by written consent. Delaware law imposes some restrictions on mergers and other business combinations between SCM and any holder of 15% or more of SCM s outstanding common stock. In addition, SCM s board of directors has the right to issue preferred stock without stockholder approval, which could be used to dilute the stock ownership of a potential hostile acquirer.

SCM has adopted a stockholder rights plan. The triggering and exercise of the rights would cause substantial dilution to a person or group that attempts to acquire SCM on terms or in a manner not approved by SCM s board of directors, except pursuant to an offer conditioned upon redemption of the rights. While the rights are not intended to prevent a takeover of SCM, they may have the effect of rendering more difficult or discouraging an acquisition of SCM that was deemed to be undesirable by its board of directors.

These provisions will apply even if the offer were to be considered adequate by some of SCM s stockholders. Because these provisions may be deemed to discourage a change of control, they may delay or prevent the acquisition of SCM, which could decrease the value of SCM s common stock.

You may experience dilution of your ownership interests due to the future issuance of additional shares of SCM s stock, and future sales of shares of its common stock could have an adverse effect on SCM s stock price.

From time to time, in the future SCM may issue previously authorized and unissued securities, resulting in the dilution of the ownership interests of its current stockholders. SCM currently is authorized to issue up to 40,000,000 shares of common stock. As of December 31, 2008, 15,743,515 shares of common stock were outstanding.

In 2007, SCM s board of directors and its stockholders approved SCM s 2007 Stock Option Plan, under which options to purchase 1.5 million shares of SCM common stock may be granted. As of September 30, 2008, an aggregate of approximately 3.1 million shares of common stock was reserved for future issuance under SCM s stock option plans, of which 1.9 million shares were subject to outstanding options. SCM may issue additional shares of its common stock or other securities that are convertible into or exercisable for shares of its common stock in connection with the hiring of personnel, future acquisitions, future private placements, or future public offerings of its securities for capital raising or for other business purposes. If SCM issues additional securities, the aggregate percentage ownership of its existing stockholders will be reduced. In addition, any new securities that SCM issues may have rights senior to those of its common stock.

In addition, the potential issuance of additional shares of its common stock or preferred stock, or the perception that such issuances could occur, may create downward pressure on the trading price of SCM s common stock.

#### Risks Relating to Hirsch s Business

Hirsch s business and results of operations are subject to numerous risks, uncertainties and other factors that you should be aware of, some of which are described below. The risks, uncertainties and other factors described in the following risk factors are not the only ones facing Hirsch. Additional risks, uncertainties and other factors not presently known to Hirsch or that Hirsch currently deems immaterial may also impair its business operations. Any of the risks, uncertainties and other factors could have a materially adverse effect on Hirsch s business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows or product market share.

Hirsch's business could be materially adversely affected as a result of conditions in the general economy and financial markets.

Hirsch is subject to the effects of general economic and financial market conditions. Recently, global credit markets and the financial services industry have been experiencing a period of unprecedented turmoil characterized by the

bankruptcy, failure or sale of various financial institutions. As a result, an unprecedented level of intervention from the United States and other governments has been seen. As a result of such disruption, Hirsch s ability to raise capital may be severely restricted and the cost of raising capital through such markets or privately may increase significantly at a time when it would like, or need, to do so. If these economic conditions further deteriorate, the Hirsch business, results of operations or financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

33

#### **Table of Contents**

The Hirsch business could be materially adversely affected as a result of adverse conditions in the commercial construction and renovation markets.

As part of its focus on commercial and industrial markets, Hirsch is subject to the effects of conditions in the commercial construction and renovation sector. If these conditions deteriorate further, resulting in a significant decline in new commercial construction or a significant decline in renovation projects, the Hirsch business, results of operations or financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

The markets Hirsch serves are highly competitive and it may be unable to compete effectively.

Hirsch competes with many other companies that manufacture and market security equipment. Some of these competitors may have substantially greater financial, engineering, manufacturing, sales, marketing, channel and partner resources than Hirsch. Hirsch competes primarily on the basis of its reputation, product features, product reliability, breadth of product line, ability to attract and work with other companies as strategic partners, ability to customize middleware and develop user interfaces to meet specific customer needs, interoperability with other systems, databases and devices, ability to offer end-to-end identity and access management, and training services. The inability of Hirsch to compete with respect to any one or more of the aforementioned factors could have an adverse impact on Hirsch s business.

If the security management system market does not experience significant growth or if Hirsch's products do not achieve broad acceptance both domestically and internationally, it will not be able to achieve its anticipated level of growth.

Hirsch s revenues are derived from sales of its security solutions. Hirsch cannot accurately predict the future growth rate or the size of the security management system market. The expansion of the security management system market and the market for Hirsch s security solutions depends on a number of factors, such as:

the cost, performance and reliability of its solutions, and the products and services offered by Hirsch s competitors;

customers perceptions regarding the benefits of and need for security solutions;

the development and growth of demand for security solutions in new markets;

public perceptions regarding the intrusiveness of identity-related solutions and the manner in which organizations use the information collected;

public perceptions regarding the confidentiality of private information;

proposed or enacted legislation related to privacy of information;

customers satisfaction with security products; and

marketing efforts and publicity regarding security products.

Even if the security management systems market continues to grow, Hirsch s solutions may not adequately address market requirements and may not gain market acceptance. If security products generally, or Hirsch s solutions specifically, do not gain wide market acceptance, Hirsch may not be able to achieve its anticipated level of growth and its revenues and results of operations would suffer.

The security management systems market is characterized by rapid technological change and evolving industry standards, which could render Hirsch's existing solutions obsolete or could result in increased research and development expenditures or failure to attract or retain customers.

Hirsch s future success will depend upon Hirsch s ability to develop and introduce a variety of new capabilities and enhancements to its existing solutions in order to address the changing and sophisticated needs of the marketplace. Frequently, technical development programs in the security industry require assessments to be made of the future direction of technology, which is inherently difficult to predict.

A significant portion of Hirsch s revenues result from the sale of access control panels that include certain design elements that are more than a decade old. These controllers are typically used in a network architecture that

34

#### **Table of Contents**

may become outdated or obsolete. Nearly all Hirsch s revenue comes from physical security products, and that product line alone may be too narrow to meet future market demands. Hirsch s failure to develop, manufacture, launch and sell next-generation security products and architectures for both physical and logical security could significantly affect its financial performance.

Delays in introducing new products and enhancements, the failure to choose correctly among technical alternatives or the failure to offer innovative products or enhancements at competitive prices may cause customers to forego purchases of Hirsch s solutions and purchase its competitors solutions. Hirsch may not have adequate resources available to it or may not adequately keep pace with appropriate requirements in order to effectively compete in the marketplace.

If Hirsch does not accurately anticipate the correct mix of products that will be sold, it may be required to record charges related to excess inventories.

Due to the unpredictable nature of the demand for Hirsch's products, it is required to place orders with Hirsch's suppliers for components, finished products and services in advance of actual customer commitments to purchase these products. Significant unanticipated fluctuations in demand could result in costly excess production or inventories. In order to minimize the negative financial impact of excess production, Hirsch may be required to significantly reduce the sales price of the product to increase demand, which in turn could result in a reduction in the value of the original inventory purchase. If Hirsch was to determine that it could not utilize or sell this inventory, it may be required to write down its value. Writing down inventory or reducing product prices could adversely impact its cost of revenues and financial condition.

#### Hirsch s business could be adversely affected by changes in laws or regulations pertaining to security.

The U.S. federal government, contractors to the federal government and certain industries in the public sector currently fall, or may in the future fall, under particular regulations pertaining to security. Some of the laws, regulations, certifications or requirements that may stimulate new security systems sales include the following:

Homeland Security Presidential Directive (HSPD) 12 and Federal Information Processing Standards (FIPS) 201 produced by National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST).

Transportation Security Administration s (TSA) Transportation Worker Identification Credential (TWIC) program.

Federal Information Security Management Act (FISMA);

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (also known as, the Public Company Accounting Reform and Investor Protection Act).

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA).

Gramm-Leach Bliley Act of 1999 (GLBA, a.k.a., the Financial Modernization Act).

Customs-Trade Partnership Against Terrorism (C-TPAT).

Free and Secure Trade Program (FAST).

Chemical Facility Anti Terrorism Standards (CFATS).d

Various Code of Federal Regulations (CFR).

Discontinuance of, changes in, or lack of adoption of laws or regulations pertaining to security could adversely affect Hirsch s performance.

Hirsch's business could be adversely affected by significant changes in the contracting or fiscal policies of governments and governmental entities.

Hirsch derives a substantial portion of its revenues from contracts with international, federal, state and local governments and government agencies, and subcontracts under federal government prime contracts. Hirsch

35

#### **Table of Contents**

believes that the success and growth of its business will continue to be influenced by its successful procurement of government contracts either directly or through prime contractors. Accordingly, changes in government contracting policies or government budgetary constraints could directly affect its financial performance.

Among the factors that could adversely affect Hirsch s business are:

changes in fiscal policies or decreases in available government funding or grants;

changes in government programs or applicable requirements;

the adoption of new laws or regulations or changes to existing laws or regulations;

changes in political or social attitudes with respect to security and defense issues;

potential delays or changes in the government appropriations process; and

delays in the payment of its invoices by government payment offices.

These and other factors could cause governments and governmental agencies, or prime contractors that purchase Hirsch products or services, to reduce their purchases under existing contracts, to exercise their rights to terminate contracts at-will or to abstain from exercising options to renew contracts, any of which could have an adverse effect on Hirsch's business, financial condition and results of operations. Many of Hirsch's government customers are subject to stringent budgetary constraints. The award of additional contracts from government agencies could be adversely affected by existing or upcoming spending reduction efforts or budget cutbacks at these agencies.

International uncertainties and fluctuations in the value of foreign currencies could harm Hirsch's profitability.

During each of the years ended November 30, 2007 and November 30, 2008, revenues outside of the Americas accounted for approximately 11% and 12%, respectively, of Hirsch s total revenues. Hirsch also currently has international operations, consisting primarily of its office in Milan, Italy. Hirsch s international revenues and operations are subject to a number of material risks, including, but not limited to:

difficulties in building and managing foreign operations;

regulatory uncertainties in foreign countries;

difficulties in enforcing agreements and collecting receivables through foreign legal systems and other relevant legal issues;

longer payment cycles;

foreign and U.S. taxation issues;

potential weaknesses in foreign economies;

fluctuations in the value of foreign currencies;

general economic and political conditions in the markets in which Hirsch operates; and

unexpected domestic and international regulatory, economic or political changes.

Hirsch s sales, including sales to customers outside the United States, are primarily denominated in U.S. dollars, and therefore downward fluctuations in the value of foreign currencies relative to the U.S. dollar may make Hirsch s solutions more expensive than local solutions in international locations. This would make its solutions less price competitive than local solutions, which could harm its business. Hirsch does not currently engage in currency hedging activities to limit the risks of currency fluctuations. Therefore, fluctuations in the value of foreign currencies could harm results of operations.

36

#### **Table of Contents**

# Hirsch s strategy to increase its sales of professional services, identity management, biometric and smart card-related products and solutions may not be successful.

Historically, the majority of Hirsch's business and products has been focused on electronic access control and integrated security management systems. A component of Hirsch's strategy is to develop and grow its sales of other products and solutions, in particular professional services, identity management, biometrics and smart card-related products and solutions. The market for some of these solutions is at an early stage of development compared to the market for traditional access control. Hirsch cannot be certain that other security solutions such as those described above will gain wide market acceptance, that this market will develop and grow as it expects, that Hirsch will successfully develop products for this market, or that it will have the same success in this market as its has had in its traditional access control systems market.

### Competitors may develop new technologies or products before Hirsch does.

Hirsch s business may be materially adversely affected by the announcement or introduction of new products and services by its competitors, and the implementation of effective marketing or sales strategies by its competitors. There can be no assurance that competitors will not develop products that are superior to the Hirsch s products. Further, there can be no assurance that Hirsch will not experience additional price competition, and that such competition may not adversely affect Hirsch s position and results of operations.

Hirsch expects the market to remain highly competitive. Some current and potential competitors have substantially greater financial, engineering, manufacturing, sales, marketing, channel and partner resources than Hirsch. To compete effectively in this environment, Hirsch must continually develop and market new and enhanced solutions and technologies at competitive prices and must have the resources available to invest in significant research and development activities. Hirsch s failure to compete successfully could cause its revenues and market share to decline.

# Hirsch relies on dealers/integrators to sell its products, and any adverse change in its relationship with its distributors could result in a loss of revenue and harm its business.

Hirsch distributes its products primarily through independent dealers/integrators of security equipment. Some of these dealers also sell Hirsch s competitors products, and if they favor its competitors products for any reason, they may fail to market its products as effectively or to devote resources necessary to provide effective sales, which would cause Hirsch s results to suffer. In addition, the financial health of these dealers and Hirsch s continuing relationships with them are important to Hirsch s success. Some of these dealers may be unable to withstand adverse changes in business conditions. The Hirsch business could be seriously harmed if the financial condition of some of these dealers substantially weakens.

### Loss of limited source suppliers may result in delays or additional expenses.

Hirsch obtains hardware components and complete products from a limited group of suppliers, and it does not have long-term agreements with any of these suppliers obligating them to continue to sell components or products to Hirsch. Hirsch s reliance on its suppliers involves significant risks, including reduced control over quality, price and delivery schedules.

Because Hirsch has been building its core products for several years, there are a few parts that have reached end-of-life. Hirsch so far has been able to continue to source those parts, but the continued availability and pricing of older components in the future is not guaranteed. A significant portion of Hirsch s revenue is derived from the resale of cards and card readers from HID Corporation (HID), and if supplies from that company were to be disrupted, Hirsch s business would be adversely affected. Hirsch resells Dell computers and servers, and disruption of that supply would

adversely affect Hirsch. Hirsch out-sources the stuffing of printed circuit boards to local manufacturers. The bulk of that out-sourcing is with a single entity, and disruptions within that company would adversely affect Hirsch.

Any financial instability of, or consolidation among, Hirsch s manufacturers or contractors could result in it having to find new suppliers. Hirsch may experience significant delays in manufacturing and shipping its products

37

#### **Table of Contents**

to customers if it loses these sources or if the supplies from these sources are delayed, or are of poor quality or supplied in insufficient amounts. As a result, Hirsch may be required to incur additional development, manufacturing and other costs to establish alternative sources of supply. It may take several months to locate alternative suppliers, if required, or to re-tool Hirsch s products to accommodate components from different suppliers. Hirsch cannot predict if it will be able to obtain replacement components within the time frames it requires at an affordable cost, or at all. Any delays resulting from suppliers failing to deliver components or products on a timely basis, in sufficient quantities and of sufficient quality or any significant increase in the price of components from existing or alternative suppliers could disrupt Hirsch s ability to meet customer demands or reduce Hirsch s gross margins.

Hirsch derives a substantial portion of its revenue through the sale of its solutions to U.S. government entities, pursuant to government contracts which differ materially from standard commercial contracts, involve competitive bidding and may be subject to cancellation or delay without penalty, any of which may produce volatility in its revenues and earnings.

Government contracts frequently include provisions that are not standard in private commercial transactions. For example, government contracts may include bonding requirements and provisions permitting the purchasing agency to cancel or delay the contract without penalty in certain circumstances.

In addition, government contracts are frequently awarded only after formal competitive bidding processes, which have been and may continue to be protracted, and typically impose provisions that permit cancellation in the event that necessary funds are unavailable to the public agency. In many cases, unsuccessful bidders for government agency contracts are provided the opportunity to formally protest certain contract awards through various agency, administrative and judicial channels. The protest process may substantially delay a successful bidder s contract performance, result in cancellation of the contract award entirely and distract management. Hirsch may not be awarded contracts for which it bids, and substantial delays or cancellation of purchases may even follow its successful bids as a result of such protests.

Furthermore, local government agency contracts may be contingent upon availability of matching funds from federal or state entities. Law enforcement and other government agencies are subject to political, budgetary, purchasing and delivery constraints which may cause Hirsch s quarterly and annual revenues and operating results to fluctuate in a manner that is difficult to predict.

Hirsch s business could be adversely affected by negative audits by government agencies, and Hirsch could be required to reimburse the U.S. government for costs that it has expended on its contracts, and its ability to compete successfully for future contracts could be materially impaired.

Government agencies may audit Hirsch as part of their routine audits and investigations of government contracts. As part of an audit, these agencies may review Hirsch's performance on contracts, cost structures and compliance with applicable laws, regulations and standards. These agencies may also review the adequacy of, and Hirsch's compliance with, its own internal control systems and policies, including its purchasing, property, estimating, compensation and management information systems. If any of its costs are found to be improperly allocated to a specific contract, the costs may not be reimbursed and any costs already reimbursed for such contract may have to be refunded. An audit could materially affect Hirsch's competitive position and result in a material adjustment to its financial results or statement of operations. If a government agency audit uncovers improper or illegal activities, Hirsch may be subject to civil and criminal penalties and administrative sanctions, including termination of contracts, forfeiture of profits, suspension of payments, fines and suspension or debarment from doing business with the federal government. In addition, Hirsch could suffer serious harm to its reputation if allegations of impropriety were made against it. While Hirsch has never had a negative audit by a governmental agency, it cannot assure that one will not occur. If Hirsch was suspended or barred from contracting with the federal government generally, or if its reputation or relationships

with government agencies were impaired, or if the government otherwise ceased doing business with it or significantly decreased the amount of business it does with Hirsch, its revenues and prospects would be materially harmed.

38

#### **Table of Contents**

Hirsch is subject to extensive government regulation, and its failure to comply with applicable regulations could subject it to penalties that may restrict its ability to conduct its business.

Hirsch is affected by and must comply with various government regulations that impact its operating costs, profit margins and the internal organization and operation of its business. Furthermore, Hirsch may be audited to assure its compliance with these requirements. Its failure to comply with applicable regulations, rules and approvals could result in the imposition of penalties, the loss of Hirsch s government contracts or its cancellation of Hirsch s General Services Administration contract, any of which could adversely affect its business, financial condition and results of operations. Among the most significant regulations affecting Hirsch s business are the following:

The Federal Acquisition Regulations, or the FAR, and agency regulations supplemental to the FAR, which comprehensively regulate the formation and administration of, and performance under government contracts.

The Truth in Negotiations Act, which requires certification and disclosure of all cost and pricing data in connection with contract negotiations.

The Cost Accounting Standards, which impose accounting requirements that govern Hirsch s right to reimbursement under cost-based government contracts.

The Foreign Corrupt Practices Act.

Laws, regulations and executive orders restricting the use and dissemination of information classified for national security purposes and the exportation of certain products and technical data.

These regulations affect how Hirsch s customers can do business with it, and, in some instances, the regulations impose added costs on its business. Any changes in applicable laws and regulations could restrict its ability to conduct its business. Any failure by Hirsch to comply with applicable laws and regulations could result in contract termination, price or fee reductions or suspension or debarment from contracting with the federal government generally.

If Hirsch is unable to continue to obtain U.S. government authorization regarding the export of its products, or if current or future export laws limit or otherwise restrict Hirsch's business, it could be prohibited from shipping Hirsch's products to certain countries, which could cause its business, financial condition and results of operations to suffer.

Hirsch must comply with U.S. laws regulating the export of Hirsch's products. In some cases, explicit authorization from the U.S. government is needed to export its products. The export regimes and the governing policies applicable to Hirsch's business are subject to changes. It cannot be certain that such export authorizations will be available to Hirsch or for Hirsch's products in the future. In some cases, Hirsch relies upon the compliance activities of its prime contractors, and it cannot be certain they have taken or will take all measures necessary to comply with applicable export laws. If Hirsch or its prime contractor partners cannot obtain required government approvals under applicable regulations, it may not be able to sell Hirsch's products in certain international jurisdictions.

### Hirsch s sometimes lengthy and variable sales cycle will make it difficult to predict financial results.

Hirsch s solutions often require a lengthy sales cycle ranging from several months to sometimes over a year before it can receive approvals for purchase. The length of the sales cycle depends on the size and complexity of the solutions, the customer s budgeting process, the customer s in-depth evaluation of Hirsch s solutions and a competitive bidding process. As a result, Hirsch may incur substantial expense before it earns associated revenues, since a significant portion of Hirsch s operating expenses is relatively fixed. The lengthy sales cycles of its solutions make forecasting the

volume and timing of sales difficult. In addition, the delays inherent in lengthy sales cycles raise additional risks that customers may cancel contracts or change their minds. If customer cancellations occur, they could result in the loss of anticipated sales without allowing Hirsch sufficient time to reduce Hirsch s operating expenses.

Hirsch s financial results often vary significantly from quarter to quarter and may be negatively affected by a number of factors.

Hirsch bases its current and future expense levels on its internal operating plans and sales forecasts, and its operating costs are to a large extent fixed. As a result, it may not be able to sufficiently reduce its costs in any quarter

39

#### **Table of Contents**

to adequately compensate for an unexpected near-term shortfall in revenues, and even a small shortfall could disproportionately and adversely affect financial results for that quarter.

In addition, Hirsch s financial results may fluctuate from quarter to quarter and be negatively affected by a number of factors, including the following:

the lack or reduction of government funding and the political, budgetary and purchasing constraints of its government agency customers;

the terms of customer contracts that affect the timing of revenue recognition;

the size and timing of its receipt of customer orders;

the inaccurate forecasts or incomplete information from its channel partners;

significant fluctuation in demand for its solutions;

price reductions or adjustments, new competitors, or the introduction of enhanced solutions from new or existing competitors;

cancellations, delays or contract amendments by government agency customers;

protests of federal, state or local government contract awards by competitors;

unforeseen legal expenses, including litigation and/or administrative protest costs;

potential effects of providing services as a prime contractor that may not carry gross margins as high as those of its core solutions;

impairment charges arising out of its assessments of goodwill and intangibles; and

other one-time financial charges.

Security breaches in systems that Hirsch sells or maintains could result in the disclosure of sensitive government information or private personal information that could result in the loss of clients and negative publicity.

Many of the systems Hirsch sells manage private personal information and protect information involved in sensitive government functions. A security breach in one of these systems could cause serious harm to Hirsch s business as a result of negative publicity and could prevent Hirsch from having further access to such systems or other similarly sensitive areas for other governmental clients.

As part of its technical support services, Hirsch agrees, from time to time, to possess all or a portion of the security system database of its customers. This service is subject to a number of risks. For example, its systems may be vulnerable to physical or electronic break-ins and service disruptions that could lead to interruptions, delays or loss of data. If any such compromise of Hirsch s security were to occur, it could be very expensive to correct, could damage Hirsch s reputation and could discourage potential customers from using its services. Although Hirsch has not experienced attempted break-ins, it may experience such attempts in the future. Its systems may also be affected by outages, delays and other difficulties. Hirsch s insurance coverage may be insufficient to cover losses and liabilities that may result from such events.

Hirsch s products may have defects, which could damage its reputation, decrease market acceptance of its products, cause it to lose customers and revenue and result in costly litigation or liability.

Products and solutions as complex as those Hirsch offers may contain defects for many reasons, including defective design or manufacture, defective material or software interoperability issues. Often, these defects are not detected until after the products have been shipped. If any of Hirsch's products contain defects or perceived defects or have reliability, quality or compatibility problems or perceived problems, its reputation might be damaged significantly, it could lose or experience a delay in market acceptance of the affected product or products and it might be unable to retain existing customers or attract new customers. In addition, these defects could interrupt or delay sales or its ability to recognize revenue for products shipped. In the event of an actual or perceived defect or

40

#### **Table of Contents**

other problem, Hirsch may need to invest significant capital, technical, managerial and other resources to investigate and correct the potential defect or problem and potentially divert these resources from other development efforts. If it is unable to provide a solution to the potential defect or problem that is acceptable to Hirsch s customers, it may be required to incur substantial product recall, repair and replacement and even litigation costs. These costs could have a material adverse effect on its business and operating results.

In addition, because Hirsch s customers rely on Hirsch s security products to prevent unauthorized access, a malfunction of or design defect in its products (or even a perceived defect) could result in legal or warranty claims against it for damages resulting from security breaches. If such claims are adversely decided against us, the potential liability could be substantial and have a material adverse effect on its business and operating results. Furthermore, the publicity associated with any such claim, whether or not decided against Hirsch, could adversely affect its reputation. In addition, a well-publicized security breach involving security systems could adversely affect the market s perception of security products in general, or its products in particular, regardless of whether the breach is actual or attributable to its products. Any of the foregoing events could cause demand for Hirsch s products to decline, which would cause the Hirsch business and operating results to suffer.

Hirsch offers a warranty on its products for a period of two years, which could result in warranty claims, possible litigation, and liability.

Hirsch offers a warranty on its products for a period of two years. Purchasers of Hirsch products may bring warranty claims against Hirsch, which could result in litigation costs and liability. These costs may adversely effect Hirsch s results of operations.

Failure to properly manage projects may result in costs or claims against Hirsch, and Hirsch s financial results could be adversely affected.

Deployments of Hirsch's solutions often involve large-scale projects. The quality of its performance on such projects depends in large part upon Hirsch's ability to manage relationships with Hirsch's customers and to effectively manage the projects and deploy appropriate resources, including its own project managers and third party subcontractors, in a timely manner. Any defects or errors or failures to meet clients' expectations could result in damage to its reputation or even claims for substantial monetary damages against it. In addition, Hirsch sometimes guarantees customers that it will complete a project by a scheduled date or that Hirsch's solutions will achieve defined performance standards. If its solutions experience a performance problem, it may not be able to recover the additional costs it will incur in its remedial efforts, which could materially impair profit from a particular project. Moreover, a portion of Hirsch's revenues are derived from fixed price contracts. Changes in the actual and estimated costs and time to complete fixed-price, time-certain projects may result in revenue adjustments for contracts where revenue is recognized under the percentage of completion method. Finally, if Hirsch miscalculates the amount of resources or time it needs to complete a project for which it has agreed to capped or fixed fees, its financial results could be adversely affected.

Hirsch is dependent on its management team and the loss of any key member of its team may impair Hirsch s ability to operate effectively and may harm Hirsch s business.

Hirsch s success depends largely upon the continued services of Hirsch s senior management, sales staff, and other key personnel. Some Hirsch employees have cultivated relationships with its customers, which makes it particularly dependent upon their continued employment with it. Hirsch is also substantially dependent on the continued services of its existing engineering and project management personnel because of the highly technical nature of its solutions. Other than an existing employment agreement with Robert Beliles which will terminate upon the closing of the Merger, Hirsch does not have employment agreements with any of its executive officers or key personnel obligating them to provide continued services and therefore, they could terminate their employment with it at any time, without

penalty. Hirsch does not maintain key person life insurance policies on any of its employees. The loss of one or more members of its management team or other key personnel could seriously harm Hirsch s business.

41

#### **Table of Contents**

Any failure to protect Hirsch's intellectual property rights could impair its ability to protect its proprietary technology, which could have a material adverse effect on the Hirsch business, financial condition and results of operations, and on its ability to compete effectively.

Hirsch s success depends significantly upon its proprietary technology. Hirsch currently relies on a combination of patents, copyright and trademark laws, trade secrets, confidentiality agreements and contractual provisions to protect its proprietary rights, which afford only limited protection. Although Hirsch often seeks to protect its proprietary technology through patents, it is possible that no new patents will be issued, that Hirsch s proprietary products or technologies are not patentable, and that any issued patent will fail to provide it with any competitive advantages. In addition, Hirsch has historically not entered into proprietary information and assignment agreements with its employees or consultants.

Unauthorized third parties may try to copy or reverse engineer portions of Hirsch's products or otherwise obtain and use its intellectual property. If it fails to protect Hirsch's intellectual property rights adequately, its competitors may gain access to Hirsch's technology, and its business would thus be harmed. In addition, defending Hirsch's intellectual property rights may entail significant expense. Any of its trademarks or other intellectual property rights may be challenged by others or invalidated through administrative processes or litigation. In addition, its patents, or any patents that may be issued to it in the future, may not provide it with any competitive advantages, or may be challenged by third parties. Furthermore, legal standards relating to the validity, enforceability and scope of protection of intellectual property rights are uncertain. Effective patent, trademark, copyright and trade secret protection may not be available to Hirsch in every country in which it markets its solutions. The laws of some foreign countries may not be as protective of intellectual property rights as those in the United States, and domestic and international mechanisms for enforcement of intellectual property rights may be inadequate. Accordingly, despite its efforts, it may be unable to prevent third parties from infringing upon or misappropriating its intellectual property or otherwise gaining access to its technology.

Hirsch may be required to expend significant resources to monitor and protect its intellectual property rights. It may initiate claims or litigation against third parties for infringement of Hirsch s proprietary rights or to establish the validity of its proprietary rights. Any such litigation, whether or not it is ultimately resolved in its favor, could result in significant expense to it and divert the efforts of Hirsch s technical and management personnel.

Hirsch may be sued by third parties in connection with intellectual property claims, such as for alleged infringement of any third party s proprietary rights.

Any intellectual property claims, with or without merit, could be time-consuming and expensive to litigate or settle, and could divert management attention away from the execution of Hirsch s business plan. In addition, Hirsch may be required to indemnify Hirsch s customers for third-party intellectual property infringement claims, which would increase the cost of an adverse ruling in such a claim. An adverse determination could also prevent it from offering its solutions to others.

Changes in tax laws or the interpretation thereof, adverse tax audits and other tax matters may adversely affect Hirsch's future results.

A number of factors may impact Hirsch s tax position, including:

the jurisdictions in which profits are determined to be earned and taxed;

the resolution of issues arising from tax audits with various tax authorities;

changes in the valuation of its deferred tax assets and liabilities;

adjustments to estimated taxes upon finalization of various tax returns;

increases in expenses not deductible for tax purposes; and

the repatriation of non-U.S. earnings for which it has not previously provided for U.S. taxes.

Any of these factors could make it more difficult for Hirsch to project or achieve expected tax results. An increase or decrease in its tax liabilities due to these or other factors could adversely affect its financial results in future periods.

42

#### **Table of Contents**

#### CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference herein contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties, as well as assumptions, that could cause the results of SCM and Hirsch to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements generally are identified by the words may, will, project, might, anticipate believes. intends. estimates. should. could. would. strategy. plan. continue. pursue, or the negativ other words or expressions of similar meaning. All statements, other than statements of historical fact, are statements that could be deemed forward-looking statements. For example, forward-looking statements include any statements of the plans, strategies and objectives of management for future operations, including the execution of integration and restructuring plans and the anticipated timing of filings; any statements concerning proposed new products, services or developments; any statements regarding future economic conditions or performance; statements of belief and any statement of assumptions underlying any of the foregoing. Forward-looking statements may also include any statements of the plans, strategies and objectives of management with respect to the approval and closing of the Merger, SCM s and Hirsch s ability to solicit a sufficient number of proxies to approve the Merger and other matters related to the consummation of the Merger.

For a discussion of risks associated with the ability of SCM and Hirsch to complete the Merger and the effect of the Merger on the present business of SCM, Hirsch and the business of SCM after the Merger, see the section entitled Risk Factors, beginning on page 12.

Additional factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements are discussed in reports filed with the SEC by SCM. See the section entitled Where You Can Find More Information, beginning on page 208.

If any of these risks or uncertainties materializes or any of these assumptions proves incorrect, the results of SCM or Hirsch could differ materially from the forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus are current only as of the date on which the statements were made. SCM and Hirsch do not undertake any obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which any statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

# SELECTED HISTORICAL AND PRO FORMA COMBINED FINANCIAL DATA

The following tables present selected historical financial data for SCM and Hirsch and comparative historical and unaudited pro forma per share data for SCM and Hirsch.

#### **Selected Historical Financial Data of SCM**

The selected consolidated financial data set forth below for SCM is derived in part from and should be read in conjunction with SCM s consolidated financial statements, the related notes and the section of this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus entitled SCM Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operation. The consolidated statement of operations data for each of the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007 and the consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2003, 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007 were derived from SCM s audited consolidated financial statements included in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus. The consolidated statement of operations data for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2007 and 2008 and the consolidated balance sheet data as of September 30, 2008 were derived from SCM s unaudited consolidated financial statements included in this proxy joint proxy

statement/information statement and prospectus. The consolidated financial statements were prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAP). This selected financial information is unaudited but, in SCM management s opinion, has been prepared on the same basis as the audited consolidated financial statements and related notes included throughout this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus and includes all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, that SCM s management considers necessary for a fair presentation of the information for the periods presented. Historical results are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected for future periods.

43

# **Table of Contents**

# SCM MICROSYSTEMS, INC. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

Nine

**Three** 

(In thousands, except per share data)	N H Septe	Months Ended ember 39 2008 (Unau	I ept	Months Ended tember 30, 2008	2007	Years 1 2006	En	ded Decen 2005	nbe	er 31, 2004	2003
Consolidated Statement of Operations											
Data:				<b>-</b>							
Net revenue	\$	6,393	\$	19,377	\$ 30,435	\$ 33,613	\$	•	\$	*	\$ 31,147
Cost of revenue		3,483		10,961	17,781	21,756		17,106		17,724	18,643
Gross profit		2,910		8,416	12,654	11,857		10,830		12,306	12,504
Operating expenses:											
Research and development		980		3,058	3,123	3,767		4,081		4,807	3,958
Selling and marketing		2,280		7,010	6,603	7,498		7,040		8,560	7,943
General and administrative		1,697		4,718	7,132	7,548		9,198		9,021	11,018
Amortization of intangibles					272	666		673		1,078	1,129
mpairment of goodwill and intangibles										388	
Restructuring and other charges (credits)					(4)	1,120		319		607	3,283
Fotal operating expenses		4,957		14,786	17,126	20,599		21,311		24,461	27,331
Loss from operations Loss from investments		(2,047)		(6,370)	(4,472)	(8,742)		(10,481)		(12,155)	(14,827) (240)
nterest income		173		642	1,639	1,350		745		806	813
Foreign currency gains (losses) and other											
ncome (expense)		(1,290)		(935)	(346)	(225)		1,731		(1,675)	2,643
Loss from continuing operations before											
ncome taxes		(3,164)		(6,663)	(3,179)	(7,617)		(8,005)		(13,024)	(11,611)
Benefit (provision) for income taxes		(103)		(151)	(113)	(73)		(150)		173	2,013
Loss from continuing operations Gain (loss) from discontinued		(3,267)		(6,814)	(3,292)	(7,690)		(8,155)		(12,851)	(9,598)
pperations, net of income taxes Gain (loss) on sale of discontinued		424		273	(215)	3,508		(2,109)		(6,242)	(13,476)
operations, net of income taxes		44		553	1,586	5,224		(2,171)		430	(15,102)
Net income (loss)	\$	(2,799)	\$	(5,988)	\$ (1,921)	\$ 1,042	\$	(12,435)	\$	(18,663)	\$ (38,176)
Basic and diluted loss per share from											
continuing operations	\$	(0.21)	\$	(0.43)	\$ (0.21)	\$ (0.49)	\$	(0.53)	\$	(0.83)	\$ (0.63)
	\$	0.03	\$	0.05	\$ 0.09	\$ 0.56	\$	(0.27)	\$	(0.38)	\$ (1.86)

125 **Table of Contents** 

Basic and diluted income (loss) per share							
rom discontinued operations							
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per							
hare	\$ (0.18)	\$ (0.38)	\$ (0.12)	\$ 0.07	\$ (0.80)	\$ (1.21)	\$ (2.49)
hares used to compute basic and diluted							
ncome (loss) per share	15 744	15 743	15 725	15 638	15 532	15 402	15 317

44

# **Table of Contents**

(In thousands)		ember 30, 2008		2007 2006			December 31, 2005			2004		2003
		(Unaudited)										
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data: Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments (unaudited)	\$	25,020	\$	32,444	\$	36,902	\$	32,440	\$	46,153	\$	55,038
Working capital(1) (unaudited) Total assets Total stockholders equity	Ψ	27,772 40,600 31,137	Ψ	34,027 48,564 37,039	Ψ	31,967 51,355 35,318	Ψ	27,371 52,734 32,617	Ψ	39,161 73,307 46,829	Ψ	50,700 96,442 63,424

(1) Working capital is defined as current assets less current liabilities

45

#### **Table of Contents**

# **Selected Historical Financial Data of Hirsch**

The selected financial data set forth below for Hirsch is derived in part from and should be read in conjunction with Hirsch's financial statements, the related notes and Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation included in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus. The statement of income data for each of the years ended November 30, 2004, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008 and the balance sheet data as of November 30, 2004, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were derived from Hirsch's audited financial statements included in this joint proxy statement/information statement and prospectus.

# HIRSCH ELECTRONICS CORPORATION SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

	Years Ended November 30,										
	2008	2007	2006	2005	2004						
		)									
<b>Statement of Operations Data:</b>											
Net revenues	\$ 23,042	\$ 21,990	\$ 20,883	\$ 20,026	\$ 15,899						
Cost of revenues	9,988	9,370	8,747	8,214	6,353						
Royalties to related parties	1,028	993	938	915	726						
Gross profit	12,026	11,627	11,198	10,897	8,820						